

DBOPC
08/13/2020

1 DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

2 WEEKLY MEETING

3 THURSDAY, AUGUST 13, 2020

4 3:00 P.M.

5 DETROIT PUBLIC SAFETY HEADQUARTERS

6 CONDUCTED VIRTUALLY, VIA ZOOM

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1 COMMISSIONERS:

2 Willie E. Bell - Chairperson (District 4)

3 Darryl D. Brown - (District 1)

4 Evette Griffie - (District 2)

5 Shirley A. Burch - (District 3)

6 Willie E. Burton - (District 5)

7 William M. Davis - (District 7)

8 Jesus Hernandez, At-Large

9 Annie Mae Holt - At-Large

10 Martin Jones - At-Large

11 Jim Holley - At-Large

12

13

14 INTERIM BOARD SECRETARY: Melanie White

15

16 REPRESENTING THE CHIEF OF POLICE:

17 James White - Assistant Chief of Police

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

	PAGE
1	
2 Call to Order, Chairperson Bell	4
3 Invocation, Commissioner Holley	7
4 Introduction of Commissioners	10
5 Invocation, Chaplain Anderson	10
6	
7 Introduction of BOPC Staff	
8 Chief of Police Report, Assistant Chief James White	
9 Report from Board Secretary	
10 Old Business	
11 New Business	68
12	
13 Adjournment	92
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	

1 Detroit, Michigan
2 Thursday, August 13, 2020
3 (At about 3:03 P.M.)

4 — — —

5 SECRETARY WHITE: Good afternoon.

6 Today's date is August 13, 2020 and welcome to the
7 Detroit Board of Police Commissioner's meeting, and
8 please note the following reminders for virtual
9 meetings on ZOOM.US. A message regarding Zoom
10 policies, again attendees do not need to identify
11 themselves unless they would like to make a comment.
12 Attendees can phone into the meeting. Phone numbers
13 will be masked by Zoom. If attendees join in by
14 computer without a Zoom account, they may be
15 prompted for a name and e-mail. The e-mail is not
16 visible to panelists or attendees. This is a prompt
17 from Zoom, not the City of Detroit.

18 Additionally, the e-mail address does not
19 need to be your true e-mail address. It could be
20 none@none.com or anything similar would be fine for
21 logging in.

22 And reminder about the meeting forum. As
23 a reminder, please adhere to the Board's Bylaws and
24 Zoom's policies of using this forum appropriately.
25 Failure to adhere to the policies will result in

1 dismissal from the meeting. Accessing Zoom
2 platforms requires adherence to all policies.
3 Regarding the Board Of Police Commissioner's contact
4 information, for Administration, please dial
5 (313) 596-1830 or send an e-mail at
6 BOPC@DetroitMI.gov.

7 For complaint investigations, please
8 contact the Office of the Chief Investigator
9 regarding noncriminal complaints. The 24-hour
10 complaint line is (313) 596-2499. The fax number is
11 (313) 596-2482 and please visit the Board's website
12 at DetroitMI.gov/BOPC.

13 Regarding public comments instructions,
14 the virtual meeting will use a forum for public
15 comments. You can sign up on smart sheet at the
16 Board's website without an e-mail address. The
17 Board of Police Commissioners allows one hour, from
18 3 to 4 P.M. for the public to request to speak
19 during public comments or oral communications on the
20 agenda. To make a request without smart sheet,
21 meeting participants may use Raise Hand icon on the
22 website or press Star 9 on the telephone.

23 Important reminders for public comments:
24 Upon joining the meeting, participants will join the
25 meeting muted. Please do not start your video

1 unless invited to do so by the host. Video images
2 or unprotected speech deemed inappropriate by the
3 chair will result in your dismissal from the
4 meeting. Remember you may complete the smart sheet
5 form, you may use the Zoom controls on your computer
6 screen to Raise Hand or you may dial star 9 from a
7 mobile device. You may use any one of these options
8 by 4 P.M. to be acknowledged for public comment.

9 Lastly, each speaker will have two
10 minutes to speak. However, if the public comments
11 list consists of 20 public commenters or more, then
12 the time will be reduced to one minute at the
13 chair's discretion. Ms. Theresa Blossom will
14 acknowledge each speaker. We ask that you remain
15 respectful and professional and refrain from
16 violating the Board's Bylaws, Zoom's terms of
17 service and other relevant laws and ordinances which
18 are posted on all meeting access forums.

19 At this time, please silent your cell
20 phones and other background sounds to prevent
21 interrupting the meeting. Thank you, and now
22 Chairperson Bell.

23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Ms. White.
24 Good afternoon to the Board, good afternoon to all.
25 I'm going to call the meeting to order. I am

1 Willie Bell, your Chair from District 4, and I'm
2 going to ask at this particular time ask our
3 chaplain for invocation, please.

4 SECRETARY WHITE: Chaplain Anderson.
5 Chairperson Bell, we're still locating her in the
6 attendees list and we do not see her at this time.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I'm going to ask
8 Commissioner Reverend Holley for invocation, please.

9 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Eternal God, we're
10 so grateful and so thankful for the day. We thank
11 you for what you have done, what you're doing right
12 now, what you will be doing in the future. We
13 praise you and we thank you. We ask the Lord that
14 you bless the City of Detroit and all the citizens
15 and the guests thereof, ask God to give us the
16 wisdom and the direction of this meeting. We thank
17 you for all of our officers, first responders, we
18 thank you for each and everyone that's participating
19 in one way or another directly or indirectly. We
20 praise you and we just thank you. Guide us with
21 your Holy Spirit, we'll forever give you the glory
22 and the praise, in Jesus' name we praise, Amen.

23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Amen. Thank you,
24 Commissioner Holley. The next order of business is
25 to introduce the Commissioners. I'm going to ask

1 the Vicechair to introduce herself.

2 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Thank you, Chair
3 Bell. Good afternoon, everyone. Vice-chair
4 Annie Holt, At-large.

5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. District
6 1.

7 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Commissioner
8 Darryl Brown, present.

9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. District
10 2.

11 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Commissioner
12 Evette Griffie, present.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. District
14 3.

15 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Good afternoon,
16 everyone. This is Commissioner Shirley Burch,
17 District 3.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. District
19 5? Absent. District 6, Commissioner Carter might
20 be able to join. If not, she has an excused absence
21 due to her work schedule. She will try to join us.
22 District 7.

23 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Commissioner William
24 Davis, District 7.

25 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, sir.

1 Commissioner-at-large, please.

2 COMMISSIONER JONES: Good afternoon,
3 everyone. Commissioner Mark Jones, At-large.

4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

5 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Good afternoon.
6 Commissioner Hernandez, present.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

8 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Good afternoon, the
9 Reverend Jim Holley, representing the City of
10 Detroit.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

12 SECRETARY WHITE: Mr. Chairperson, you do
13 have a quorum.

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, and we have
15 (inaudible) at this time?

16 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes, sir.

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

18 SECRETARY WHITE: And also,
19 Mr. Chairperson, the Chaplain has rejoined the line
20 for your information.

21 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Is she on now? I give
22 up. We don't get enough prayer, so that would be
23 appropriate. Let us pray.

24 CHAPLIN ANDERSON: Hello, can everybody
25 hear me?

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

2 CHAPLIN ANDERSON: Oh, my goodness, thank
3 God. I've been playing with this things, and so I
4 apologize. This is the new way of meetings now, so
5 I do apologize. I've been fighting with this. But
6 would you like me to still pray?

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

8 CHAPLAIN ANDERSON: Okay. Father, we
9 just thank you and we give you glory and honor and
10 praise for who you are. We thank you for this day.
11 You said where two or more come together in your
12 name, you are in the midst. So, Father, we just
13 thank you that you are on this meeting call with us
14 today; that you have joined us today, Father. I
15 want, Father, I just thank you that your word says
16 that we are not alone, that you are with us and you
17 will be with us until the end of the age. So,
18 Father, as we go forth in this meeting today, I
19 thank you, Lord, that you will bless all of our
20 leaders today, give them the mind to lead, the
21 discernment to lead and make decisions for the city,
22 for the police departments and every other
23 department within the city. And so, Father, we give
24 you glory and honor and praise for direction. We
25 give you glory and honor and praise for knowledge

1 and understanding as well, Lord. In Jesus' name,
2 Amen.

3 MULTIPLE SPEAKERS: Amen.

4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Chaplain
5 Anderson. We thank you for hanging in there.

6 CHAPLAIN ANDERSON: Thank you.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Ms. White, would you
8 introduce the Board staff, please.

9 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes, sir, thank you,
10 Chairperson Bell.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: And yourself.

12 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes. I am Melanie
13 White, Interim Secretary to the Board, and also
14 present during the meeting today before I move to
15 the staff introductions, the Department of
16 Innovation and Technology is monitoring the Board's
17 meeting today, and our court reporter is
18 Ms. Theresa Roberts. And the following Board staff
19 members are in attendance today: Attorney Jermaine
20 Wyrick, Ms. Theresa Blossom, Community Relations
21 Coordinator, Ms. Jonna Underwood, Administrative
22 Assistant, Ms. D'Layne Richards, Legal Assistant,
23 Lieutenant James Coles is representing Dr. Marcella
24 Anderson, Director of Police Personnel, and also
25 Interim Chief Investigator, Lawrence Akbar,

1 Supervising Investigator Anthony Cromwell,
2 Supervising Investigator Lasonia Snow, Senior
3 Investigator, Rosalee Magical and Investigator
4 Tiffany Steward are also in attendance. And that
5 concludes the staff introductions at this time.

6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Would you
7 introduce the Assistant Chief or Deputy Chief?

8 SECRETARY WHITE: Deputy Chief Elaine
9 Bryant.

10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. I see her
11 now. Thank you, Deputy Chief Bryant, for your
12 attendance.

13 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Thank you.

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Would you introduce,
15 if possible, the BP staff that you might have
16 listed? If not, Ms. White would say the rest.

17 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Yes, sir, through
18 the chair, we have Director Tricia Stein with us,
19 Director Christopher Graveline, Deputy Chief
20 Bretheim, Commander Eric Ewing, Captain Keith
21 Williams and Captain Eric Paston.

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Deputy
23 Chief. Do we have any elected official
24 representative?

25 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes, we do have special

1 VIP guests this afternoon, Mr. Brian Tyneil,
2 representing Council Member, Roy McAllister, Mr. J.
3 Henderson representing the 5th Precinct Police
4 Community Relations Council, and he is the president
5 of the 5th Precinct Police Community Relations
6 Council, and also Lieutenant Mark Young, President
7 of Lieutenant's and Sergeant's Association are all
8 present this afternoon.

9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, welcome to
10 all. So we can move forward then.

11 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes.

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: The next item would be
13 my report; is that correct?

14 SECRETARY WHITE: The approval of the
15 agenda.

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I'm jumping ahead of
17 myself. The reading glasses are not working for me.
18 The Chair would entertain a motion for approval of
19 the agenda for August 13.

20 COMMISSIONER BURCH: So moved.

21 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Supported.

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's been properly
23 moved and supported. Those in favor, yes.

24 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Yes.

25 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes.

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Next item
2 is approval of minutes from August 6, 2020. Those
3 in favor, yes.

4 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Yes.

5 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Yes.

6 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Any necessary
8 corrections or addition to the minutes? Thank you.

9 Good afternoon again, I want to welcome
10 you to the weekly meeting of the Detroit Board of
11 Police Commissioners. As it's been stated, I am
12 Willie Bell, Chair of the Board of Police
13 Commission. I am from District 4, the East side of
14 Detroit.

15 Our theme is Accountability Through
16 Civilian Oversight since 1974. Civilian oversight
17 is the form of civil rights protection. Oversight
18 (inaudible) are at the forefront investigating,
19 reviewing and auditing individual cases of pattern
20 of misconduct, bias policing, illegal searches,
21 excessive force, unlawful arrest, use of deadly
22 force and other issues that impact policing. That
23 is under Article 7 of the City Charter 803, the
24 duties of the Board of Police Commissioner.

25 Number 3, receive and resolved as

1 provided in this Chapter any complaint concerning
2 the operations of the police department and forward
3 all allegations of criminality to the appropriate
4 internal-external law enforcement agency. In most
5 cases that would be handled by Internal Affairs of
6 the Detroit Police Department.

7 Noncriminal complaints are handled by
8 Office of the Chief Investigator, Office of the
9 Board of Police Commission. In today's Detroit Free
10 Press, polls show confidence in police at new low.
11 Surveys spotlight growing racial divide, balance
12 polls have indicated the American confidence in
13 police fell to the lowest reported in nearly 30
14 years. Only 80 percent of Americans say they have a
15 great deal or quite a lot of confidence in policing,
16 down from 53 percent the previous year. This month,
17 we the BOPC, the Board of Police Commissioners, are
18 rolling out our own survey to you, our community.
19 We are seeking your feedback on policing in Detroit.
20 We hope to undertake that this month.

21 Commissioners, you have a copy of the
22 survey and you still have opportunity to weigh on it
23 before we share it with the public. So take a look
24 at it and contact Mr. White if you have any concern.

25 Now, I'm going to move on to Commissioner

1 Burch, District 3, to come before you with her
2 report on the good and well being of the Board of
3 Police Commissioners, City of Detroit, from her
4 viewpoint. Commissioner.

5 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you, Chair
6 Bell, and to the honorable colleagues that are on
7 the Board and to Chief Craig and to the DPD entire
8 staff. I just want to briefly share that my
9 experience with the Board of Police Commissioners
10 has been very interesting, very exciting, as I was
11 led by the mentors that are no longer there, that
12 would be Commissioner Dewaelsche, Brooks and also
13 Ms. Lisa is still there, but she's just been absent.
14 But these ladies led me into all of the world I
15 never knew. So it's almost -- I want everybody to
16 know that as a commissioner of Third District, we're
17 learning together. I don't believe the Third
18 District experienced the commissioners before, so
19 it's a wonderful thing that we're learning together.

20 I wanted to share like Reverend Holley
21 did that my whole history comes from Alabama where
22 my family came up here. So enjoying all the things
23 that I've been allowed to do, I read the book called
24 Purpose Driven Life, that's by Rick Warren. So that
25 shared with me that the purpose in life, we don't

1 know where we're going, but as I've gotten to my
2 age, I am so impressed by the people that I've met,
3 that the chivalry of the Board of Police
4 Commissioners in the past, it was Gregory Hicks. I
5 thank Mr. Brown, I thank Mr. Wyrick, the attorney, I
6 thank Ms. Blossom, I thank Ms. Yolanda, I thank
7 Melanie. There's so many people, if I left your
8 name out, it's been an experience, a roller coaster
9 that when we visit some of the new people that are
10 on the Board now, we had the opportunity to visit
11 southwest Detroit. And when I saw the DC Bettison
12 there and all the people knew him, I said, how do
13 you know Bettison when he's way on the east side.
14 So for that gentleman to cover so much parts of the
15 whole city as the neighborhood liaison, I commend
16 him for that. But again in all of the remembering
17 that I have of this Board, I love the graduations.
18 I was sad that the home going of so many officers in
19 the beginning of 2019 -- I mean '18, and so I've
20 experienced so much. And all of the new
21 commissioners, you missed all those beautiful
22 luncheon or dinners that we would have when we would
23 go out to the community meetings, they were simply
24 awesome.

25 And then I just want to say that I'm

1 learning in my third year, it is a difference
2 between elected or appointed or at-large
3 commissioners. I'm learning all that. So, again,
4 it's about communicating, it's about your purpose.
5 I thank you for the opportunity to speak, but one
6 thing that I always loved to do was take pictures.
7 The whole commission would laugh at me when I
8 brought out my old fashioned camera and took
9 pictures. But they'd be happy when I framed them
10 and gave each commissioner a picture. You all
11 remember that? So the best picture that we took
12 together was with the Honorable, the deceased,
13 Honorable Damon Keith. We took a picture together
14 upon my initiative, to say, may we take a picture
15 together? Mayor Duggan said yes. So we have a
16 picture and also on that picture is deceased
17 Derrick Sanders. That's how I met the engineers.
18 So your path always goes, when you've got purpose,
19 your path leads you.

20 So I'm so happy to be a part of this
21 Board to learn more, to go back to my community and
22 we learn together, like I said, Third District knows
23 nothing about what a commissioner does, and I want
24 them to understand that out there, Board Members, I
25 want you to know I'm known as Shirley Burch, Mother

1 Burch, or Mrs. Burch. They do not call me
2 Commissioner Burch. I get all these honors down
3 here with you. You all call me Honorable, okay,
4 that's nice, but I'm saying my district doesn't
5 realize that, they don't know the purpose yet. And
6 I just want us to be on one accord, to help this
7 city, help our Detroit Police Department become
8 better. So as we work together, Mr. Bell, we'll be
9 a better city, and I thank you for the opportunity
10 to speak. Thank you.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you,
12 Commissioner Burch, for sharing that very
13 interesting comments, and I know your heart is dear
14 to that community. And thank you for those Polaroid
15 pictures. Did you hear me?

16 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes, I heard you.

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Because that picture
18 with Judge Damon Keith is historic. You know, that
19 was one opportunity and you seized the moment, and I
20 treasure that picture in terms of prominent displays
21 in my household. So I want to thank you.

22 COMMISSIONER BURCH: That's wonderful.
23 Thank you.

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

25 Now, we're going to At-Large duly

1 appointed Hernandez. He can properly introduce
2 himself At-Large.

3 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Thank you, Chair
4 Bell, first of all for the platform and opportunity
5 to just share brief thoughts. I certainly echo the
6 comments of my fellow Commissioner, Commissioner
7 Burch, and in my new tenure I would offer a very
8 brief reflection, not only for myself but for my
9 colleagues on the Honorable Board. Someone very
10 important to me several years ago told me navigating
11 through life, whether it be personal or
12 professional, leadership is nothing more and nothing
13 less than that. And I think it's very appropriate
14 for the oversight responsibilities that we have here
15 on this board for us to act accordingly and know
16 that we do carry a responsibility in our
17 communities, independent of which specific district
18 we may represent, independent of our appointment or
19 election, we all have common ground in trying to
20 serve our communities as best as we can collectively
21 as a board. And in doing so, I would offer as well,
22 that diligence with integrity and action I think is
23 key as we look at, you know, the different
24 guidelines and policy and impact that we can
25 potentially have in our communities, not just for

1 this generation, but for the future as well. And
2 just something of very simple value that I try and
3 keep close to the heart is to listen with kindness.
4 I think it goes without saying a lot of times when
5 we interact and engage with folks in the community
6 who are our neighbors independent again of which
7 community we may specifically live in or represent.
8 And so it's important to do that. We have an
9 opportunity as a board to model oversight board
10 across the country. And so I would encourage and
11 invite each of you to do so collectively again as a
12 team. And in the coming days I'll extend sort of an
13 individual offer to each of you for us to connect to
14 try and find what that common ground looks like so
15 that we can find that common purpose and deliver
16 that common purpose for our community.

17 So again, thank you, Chair Bell, for the
18 opportunity and to each of my colleagues and also to
19 DC Bryant and the entire DPD staff, just know that
20 our partnership here is present; that I look forward
21 to nurturing continuously that partnership. So
22 thank you.

23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you,
24 Commissioner Hernandez. I think your reflection,
25 you know, is accurate in terms of we are here to

1 serve and we appreciate that.

2 I see Commissioner Burton has joined us.
3 We welcome you to the meeting.

4 Just before I move on to promotion
5 candidates, I want to acknowledge Commissioner
6 Vice-Chair Holt for the opportunity to visit the
7 recruiting section in terms of getting enlightening
8 in terms of how all that process works. And also
9 Commissioner Holt and Commissioner Jones for
10 visiting the police academy to get an idea and to be
11 enlightened and be informed of how that system
12 works. So I would hope other commissioners take
13 advantage of getting to know the inner workings of
14 it. Those are two very important areas and I can't
15 say enough that I want the public to know that we
16 are aggressively recruiting. I want to pick that
17 mantel up that we have probably dropped the ball in
18 the last couple of weeks with Commissioners Brooks
19 and Dewaelsche not being with us, but we are
20 actively recruiting to make sure we sort of share
21 that initially with Ms. White's remarks about
22 recruiting; that we are recruiting.

23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Now, if we move on
24 to --

25 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Through the chair.

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

2 COMMISSIONER HOLT: One little comment,
3 when I was at the recruiting area, Sergeant Gonzales
4 kept referring to me as Commissioner Brooks. So
5 ultimately Lieutenant Combs said, well, really this
6 is Commissioner Holt. And, of course, Sergeant
7 Gonzales apologized, but I was favored by the
8 comment, so I didn't say anything. But yeah, she is
9 very well known in the community for her recruitment
10 of possible police officers.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, thank you,
12 I appreciate that.

13 We're going to move on to the 2020
14 detective promotion candidates. Commissioners, you
15 have received the list of officers that's being
16 promoted to detective with all the background
17 information, all the details and I assume if you had
18 any concern, you contacted Mrs. White. She sent it
19 out very timely and you got a hard copy of it. So
20 the Chair would entertain a motion from the body, if
21 that's appropriate.

22 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Through the Chair, I
23 move that the Board approve the promotions for the
24 following members to the rank of detective and those
25 members are as follows: Commissioner Jones.

1 COMMISSIONER JONES: Okay, all right.

2 First up we have -- and thank you also through the
3 Chair and also to the Vice-Chair, Commissioner Holt.

4 First we have Corporal Jessica A. Johns, Police
5 Officer, Nicole L. Draper, Police Officer Marcus
6 Rice, Police Officer Shawn A. Humperdale, Police
7 Officer, Tara R. Lawson, Police Officer Mark L.
8 Thompson, Police Officer, Listene A. Gilbert, Police
9 Officer Martha G. Wilaham, Police Office Michael B.
10 Prestige, and Police Officer Anthony N. Bayso.

11 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Thank you.

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Could we just pause,
13 Commissioner Holt, for one second. Did I hear a
14 second on that?

15 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: I did.

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Commissioner
17 Holley seconded it. Now Vice-Chair Holt.

18 SECRETARY WHITE: Oh, excuse me.

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Go ahead.

20 SECRETARY WHITE: There are about --
21 there are several more candidates.

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, we haven't
23 finished the list yet. We just went through the
24 first ten.

25 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Okay. Police Officer

1 Edward Chesser, Police Officer Ashley L. Burgholtz,
2 Police Officer Vincent C. Spikes, Police Officer
3 Renald L. Atard, Police Officer Tamera Randolph,
4 Police Officer Steven L. Pierce, Police Officer
5 Kelly D. James Police Officer Lee P. Dire, Police
6 Officer Catherine L. Golyum, Police Officer
7 Christian C. Wynans-Jordan.

8 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Ms. White, did we fill
9 all the names?

10 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes, sir.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. It's been
12 properly moved and seconded. Any discussion?

13 Those in favor, yes.

14 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Yes.

15 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes.

16 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Yes.

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Do we need a roll call
18 or are we satisfied with the yeses?

19 Those in opposition, no.

20 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: No.

21 COMMISSIONER BURTON: No.

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Ms. White.

23 SECRETARY WHITE: Motion passed.

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. I want to
25 congratulate all those who have been promoted to the

1 rank of detective. Normally, they would be in
2 attendance if we were meeting in person, so I want
3 to wish them the best, and we're looking forward to
4 interaction with them in terms of how they
5 (inaudible) also with their promotion (inaudible).

6 The next Item would be Deputy Chief
7 Bryant on behalf of Chief Craig.

8 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Yes, through the
9 Chair. First I'd like to talk about a couple of
10 officers that are injured and give you some updates
11 on that. We have Officer Eugene Fielder assigned to
12 the Tenth Precinct. This was the officer that was
13 injured during the protests and had the cone that
14 struck his neck. He is currently off disabled and
15 recovering at home right now from his injuries.

16 We also have two police officers from the
17 Fourth Precinct, Police Officer Estebon Porotti, and
18 Police Officer Keith Anthony, they were assisting
19 with an arrest regarding a kidnapping suspect, and
20 they were both injured. They received injuries to
21 their head and some bite injuries as well. They are
22 both currently at home recovering from their
23 injuries as well.

24 As it relates to crime, we are currently
25 up seven percent in violent crimes and around 12

1 percent in our property crimes. Over the course of
2 the week, we've had 171 felony arrests, we issued
3 1,671 citations and ordinances. We confiscated 127
4 handguns, 26 long guns and had 109 DCW arrests for
5 the week.

6 As it relates to our drag racing detail
7 for the weekend, our stats are as follows: 194
8 traffic stops, 223 tickets, 33 tows, 12 felony
9 arrests, six weapons recovered. So that is our
10 stats in regards to the enforcement that we've been
11 doing for the week.

12 I want to address -- I know that there
13 was an issue or concern for the address of 9000
14 Woodward, the Little Rock Baptist Church. Our
15 officers had been doing enforcement at that location
16 over the weekend. They checked the location, there
17 was no activity found. They will continue to check
18 that location going forward, so that's going to be
19 something that we keep on our radar to make sure
20 that we don't have any issues or concerns in that
21 area.

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

23 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: No problem, sir.
24 And as it relates to some of the questions in
25 regards -- oh, our COVID numbers. We have 20

1 members that are currently positive with COVID at
2 this time and 30 that are quarantined. So that's 20
3 positive and 30 quarantined.

4 As it relates to our protests, they've
5 been in southwest for the past three days. They
6 will be going back downtown, the information that we
7 have, starting tomorrow. One of the issues or
8 concerns that we had in regards to them being
9 downtown is, I don't know if you guys are aware, but
10 they had a late start date, a late start time, so
11 they started around 7 P.M. last Friday and they
12 actually, after their protests, they marched through
13 Greektown. And as you know on the weekend, downtown
14 traffic is extremely heavy. So that is a concern to
15 us in regards to not only their safety, but the
16 safety of, you know, the patrons for downtown, as
17 well as the officers. So we'll continue to monitor
18 that and try to make sure that we keep everyone safe
19 in regards to that. But we know that they'll be
20 downtown again this week.

21 As it relates to issues regarding
22 internal affairs investigations, specifically
23 Officer Bill Hood's employment, I'm going to let
24 Director Graveline speak to that issue. For
25 questions regarding our Green Light, the startup

1 costs and everything, we have Captain Coster that
2 will address that as well.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

4 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Director, we can't
5 hear you.

6 SECRETARY WHITE: The microphone is
7 unmuted at this time for Director Graveline.

8 MR. TOSQUIARIC: Do you want me to jump
9 in while he's figuring that out?

10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir, that will
11 work, sir.

12 MR. TOSQUIARIC: Thank you, through the
13 Chair, Mr. Davis had a question last week and I was
14 unable to answer it at the time, but there's average
15 costs, most popular option is to do a lease.
16 Comcast is the most popular vendor. The lease is
17 approximately a \$1,000 down and \$150 a month which
18 excludes the internet. Right now, as I mentioned
19 last week Comcast has a 50 percent off installation
20 and multi-site discount. There are pay-up-front
21 options that average between 5 and 6,000 depending
22 on which vendor they select, and that includes
23 camera and cloud storage. And if you or anybody is
24 interested, then go to the city's website and go to
25 the Project Green Line Detroit site. There is a

1 button right on the main page there that has all the
2 costs and how to get involved and it will show
3 Option One, lease and cameras, between Comcast and
4 Kronus and Guardian Alarm and Infinite Technologies,
5 option on purchase with the different installers on
6 there: Access Surveillance, Clearview, Security
7 Pro, Guardian Alarm, ITG Systems, IC Data
8 Communications, Infinite Technologies, I-View, James
9 the Electrical Contractor, Logical Owl, Logitech
10 Incorporated, Prudential. Then there's pricing for
11 signage. There's the two vendors and the pricing
12 goes between 450 to 650 for signage. And then the
13 two vendors for the Green Light itself, and the
14 pricing for that is between 450 and 500.

15 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, sir.

16 Ms. White.

17 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes, Director

18 Graveline.

19 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I see his lips
20 moving.

21 SECRETARY WHITE: Okay. On this end the
22 microphone is unmuted, so there obviously are some
23 technical difficulties.

24 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Through the chair.

25 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

1 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: So there was a
2 question in regards to the Major Violators Unit as
3 well I'd like to address if that's okay.

4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am. Thank
5 you.

6 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Right now we have,
7 the Major Violators Unit is still up and running.
8 We have Commander Pritchard who's the commander over
9 Major Violators. She's actually Commander of
10 Organized Crime, Major Violators falls under
11 Organized Crime. We have Captain Ryan Connor who's
12 the captain at Organized Crime and then Deputy Chief
13 Wilson, who is the Deputy Chief of the Detective
14 Bureau, and Organized Crime falls under him as well.
15 So I just wanted to put that on the record. That's
16 the leadership at this time.

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. So we
18 might not have the Director report at this time?

19 SECRETARY WHITE: Not at this specific
20 time.

21 DIRECTOR GRAVELINE: I believe I can talk
22 now. I'm on my phone now as opposed to the
23 computer. I apologize for that.

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: No problem. Thank
25 you.

1 DIRECTOR GRAVELINE: Through the chair.
2 Last week Commissioner Brown had some questions
3 concerning the investigation into Mr. Chancellor and
4 specifically how that impacted Sergeant Gilhood.
5 This particular investigation came to our attention
6 in a slightly different manner than most. The Wayne
7 County Prosecutor's Convention Integrity Unit
8 brought it to our attention approximately -- or at
9 least their conclusions in March of this year. So
10 they came and let us know about their investigation
11 and its conclusions. As soon as we found out, we
12 opened our own internal affairs investigation. So
13 that investigation was opened up on March 20th of
14 this year. Some of the details of the investigation
15 are a little complex in terms of the corroborating
16 information. And so our investigator has been very
17 active over the last several months interviewing
18 several members of the command as well as through
19 last week. He was running down certain leads on
20 some of the corroborating information. She is
21 coming close to finalizing that report. She
22 believes the investigators, Sergeant Wilson in our
23 Internal Affairs, she believes that that report
24 should be complete next week for the chain of
25 command. And it will be at that time that we will

1 bring the chief our recommendations as to the duty
2 status of Sergeant Gilhood. So that's where we're
3 at with that particular investigation.

4 Generally speaking, I think to speak to
5 your question, Commissioner Brown, is what's his
6 duty status right now? Right now he remains full
7 duty. He's not in an investigative capacity. He's
8 currently working as a sergeant in the 8th Precinct
9 on one of the platoons there. But in terms of once
10 we have our investigation done, we'll be able to
11 better advise Chief as to what his duty status
12 should be.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Director
14 Graveline. Do you have any questions for the Deputy
15 Chief in reference to the report?

16 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Through the Chair,

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Holley,
18 Commissioner Davis.

19 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Chair.

20 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Holley,
21 Commissioner Davis, then Commissioner Burch.

22 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: To the chief,
23 assistant chiefs, is it assistant chief, is that who
24 I'm talking to?

25 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Deputy Chief.

1 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Deputy Chief.

2 Okay. I'm sorry. What are the protesters' demands
3 and then who's basically meeting with them about the
4 demands?

5 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Through the chair,
6 their demands are fire Chief Craig and the Mayor and
7 defund the police, that's their demands.

8 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: So that means
9 they're going to be there for a long time.

10 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Yes, sir.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you,
12 Commissioner Holley. Commissioner Davis.

13 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes, a couple
14 things. One, I know quite some time ago there was a
15 news article in the paper and we was told there was
16 an investigation. Was there any update on the
17 person that was signing the Chief's signature?
18 Because I know it appears like there's a number of
19 investigations that are started, but we never get no
20 update on it. Also, I would like an update on --
21 because I've been requesting for quite some time
22 about deployment, you know, deployment mobilization
23 and when will we have that information?

24 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Through the Chair,
25 I would direct your question in regards to an

1 investigation to Director Graveline, as he's in
2 charge of Professional Standards. But when you say,
3 a request on mobilization, could you be more
4 specific? I'm not really understanding.

5 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Well, quite some
6 time ago, I think almost a year ago, I asked about a
7 mobilization plan and how long does it take officers
8 to report if an emergency happens because it appears
9 like some information should be more forthcoming
10 than it has been.

11 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Well, through the
12 chair, I will definitely bring that concern back,
13 but we actually have our officers respond extremely
14 fast. We've been dealing with these protests and I
15 can tell you that we have manpower around the clock.

16 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Does it show how
17 long it takes them from their home to get to the
18 city if there's an emergency to their work location?

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: They are working on
20 that plan. We received information, they hope to
21 complete that process that you requested. So
22 hopefully we will get notification that's been
23 completed.

24 DIRECTOR GRAVELINE: Through the chair.
25 to Commissioner Davis's question about the

1 investigation into the signature, that investigation
2 ended up being inconclusive. Several people who
3 worked in the capacity that might have signed it are
4 no longer with the department and we're not able to
5 interview them. And so we were not able to
6 definitively identify who signed Chief's signature,
7 although we have some strong suspicions as to who
8 that person is. The person that we believe it is is
9 no longer with the department. We were no longer
10 able to interview that person. So in terms of the
11 findings of the investigation, that would be
12 inconclusive.

13 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: That would be
14 helpful to have that information sometimes.

15 DIRECTOR GRAVELINE: Yes, sir.

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

17 Commissioner Burch.

18 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes, thank you, Mr.
19 Chair. To DC Bryant, good afternoon, and DC Bryant
20 is part of the East side as far as taking care of
21 the Commander Phrafee and also the commander in
22 Number 9. I just wanted to ask you -- these are
23 follow ups like Commissioner Davis, about, first of
24 all, the ordinances regarding the pool and the car
25 parked up in the yard, we had a meeting on this past

1 Tuesday, a Community Relations meeting, where all of
2 the citizens agreed, but now we have proof,
3 ordinance numbers that we can give to you later, but
4 we just want the officers to take care of what we,
5 as citizens bring to you and like Commissioner Brown
6 asked, and it was a follow up that I don't get
7 answers back far as the young man and officer --
8 Mr. Bell, what happened is the officer did a donut
9 in Greektown, but he was caught on tape. So however
10 the police go and pick up that young man, what
11 happened to the officer? How was he reprimanded for
12 doing that? So those are two first, and then I have
13 one follow up, Mr. Bell.

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

15 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Through the Chair.

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

17 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: We've had several
18 officers in regards to the specific complaint about
19 the house a couple doors down from you, Commissioner
20 Burch, that had responded to that. Now, you just
21 sent me today a picture of the vehicle, so I'll
22 address those officers that go back out there and
23 deal with it now as we speak so that they can go
24 ahead and handle that.

25 In regards to the kiddie pool, what we're

1 going to do, like I explained to you yesterday on
2 the phone, is have a conversation with the young
3 homeowner because we're going to ask them, would
4 they please be willing to put that pool in the back.
5 Unfortunately, having the kiddie pool out is not a
6 violation. So we're going to have that conversation
7 with them because, you know, we think that maybe
8 through community relations and through having that
9 conversation they'd be willing to move it.

10 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Okay. Could I
11 respond, Mr. Bell?

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

13 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Because I do think
14 that we do have the ordinance that says that is
15 against the law. So when I shared these ordinances
16 you can read them for yourself, that is was updated
17 even to the July 19, 2019, that you cannot put a
18 pool, regardless if it's a wading pool, on the front
19 without it being fenced in because that's an
20 endangerment to that child. So I can share that all
21 with you off the air if the Board wants to follow up
22 That's all.

23 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Through the chair,
24 I did consult with Deputy Chief Ha in regards to
25 that because we want to make sure that we, you know,

1 follow the law and make sure that we're not
2 violating anybody's rights as well. So we will have
3 that conversation offline, but according to Deputy
4 Chief Ha, you know, it's not a violation.

5 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Okay. So he can
6 share off the line. The other issue is that we
7 think that our whole area from Six Mile to Eight
8 Mile, whether it be Dequindre or Conant or Ryan
9 Road, that I-75 is under repair, right, under
10 construction. So, therefore, that leaves that
11 traffic to come up, and usually they use Dequindre
12 because they can't use I-75. And DC Bryant, we've
13 been saying that these motorists speed at 75 to 100.
14 I mean, they get on your back when regular people
15 are driving down the street, they get on your back.
16 As a matter of fact, they'll jump to the other side
17 to get away from you. So that's why we think this
18 area needs special attention.

19 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Through the chair,
20 yes, ma'am, and to your point, traffic enforcement
21 has been given that location as special attention.
22 In a week's time we wrote 1,671 citations. So we
23 are absolutely trying to address the concerns in
24 regards to traffic.

25 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you.

1 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Through the Chair.

2 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes.

3 COMMISSIONER BROWN: DC Bryant, I just
4 want to thank all of the men and women of the
5 department for the work, the hard work they're doing
6 in the last few weeks with the drag racing and all
7 the things. I know we're stretched pretty good for
8 removing the guns off the streets, and more
9 especially I want to thank our NPOs out there.
10 There's nothing that I haven't called to have
11 resolved that they haven't checked into it, whether
12 it's an abandoned vehicle or blight in the yard,
13 anything like that. I think they're doing a
14 wonderful job.

15 I just had one question and maybe I need
16 to just make a phone call. And Chairman Bell, you
17 can probably chime in on this as well if you have
18 information. But with regard to all the parking
19 issues that we're seeing, where is the parking
20 authority? Because I'm looking at and a lot of
21 things that we're doing that we have to be careful
22 and not make things a police matter. And we have a
23 unit out there, that's the parking authority. Why
24 aren't they out there writing tickets, and different
25 things like that, building issues and stuff like

1 that? Where are the BC officers and people who work
2 for there? Do we need to be making those calls
3 ourselves to try to, you know, free up our officers
4 for these things that are not police issues? I
5 mean, I know we write tickets from time to time for
6 speeders for parking and different things like that
7 and blight; where is BC, where's the parking
8 authority? Is that something we can help out our
9 department and help you out to lighten your load a
10 little bit to get some help out there for our
11 officers to free up some of the time that they have
12 regarding some of these issues?

13 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Through the Chair,
14 we do have really good relationships with our
15 partners in regards to these situations. So the
16 commanders and captains have relationships with DC,
17 they have relationships with parking enforcement.
18 So we do work hand in hand with them. It's been
19 unfortunate because of the things that we've been
20 going through over the past few month, things have
21 stalled out a little bit, so we are hoping to be
22 able to pick up and do more together, with more
23 collaboration to be able to address a lot of these
24 quality of life issues.

25 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Thank you, thank you

1 all for your service, those that are listening.

2 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Any other
3 questions for the Deputy Chief? Commissioner
4 Burton.

5 SECRETARY WHITE: He's on mute. He needs
6 to unmute himself, please. There you go.

7 COMMISSIONER BURTON: A few weeks ago --
8 you guys had me muted. But a few weeks ago I called
9 for a question for the Assistant Deputy Chief. I
10 called for the video of the protestor that was ran
11 over by DPD. I wanted to see the video two hours
12 before the incident occurred and an hour after. Do
13 you know when that video will be available for the
14 commission?

15 In addition, I speak on the behalf of the
16 residents in the 5th District, I'd like to know what
17 is the police response times for priority 1, 2,
18 priority 3 and priority 4 calls here in the city of
19 Detroit? Not just Green Light locations, but
20 priority 1, 2, 3 and 4?

21 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Through the chair,
22 Director Graveline would be better equipped to
23 answer the question in regards to the video. But as
24 it relates to our Priority 1 calls, we're averaging
25 right now, priority 1 calls, we're averaging about,

1 is it 14, 14 minutes? So I mean, you know, it's a
2 work in progress, but, you know, we have a lot more
3 calls for service than we've had. But I can get you
4 those specific numbers. I think it's in the report
5 that you get. I think you have that report, if I'm
6 not mistaken, it breaks down the calls for service
7 and it breaks it down by precinct as well.

8 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Can you please give
9 that to Ms. Melanie White so she can share with the
10 rest of the Board, please?

11 SECRETARY WHITE: Through the chair, that
12 report is included in the weekly packet.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am, thank you.

14 SECRETARY WHITE: So it's already
15 included in your packet.

16 COMMISSIONER BURTON: But it's not a
17 breakdown for priority 1, 2, 3, and priority 4
18 calls.

19 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: It's a breakdown
20 for priority 1 and priority 2. It is a breakdown
21 and it's in that report that we provided.

22 COMMISSIONER BURTON: But the Detroit
23 Police Department does have priority 3 and priority
24 4 calls as well, right?

25 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: So what we break

1 down is our priority 1 and priority 2. If you're
2 asking for additional information, I will take that
3 back to the Chief.

4 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Sure.

5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Ms. White,
6 we'll coordinate that to see if that's appropriate.

7 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes, sir.

8 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We're concerned about
9 one and two. The second question, Director, did you
10 hear the question?

11 DIRECTOR GRAVELINE: Yes, sir. Through
12 the chair, if any of the Commissioners would like to
13 see that particular video, we can set up the time
14 for the Commissioners to come and view the video, as
15 Commissioner Burton asked for two hours beforehand.
16 We will get the entire video that we have and show
17 it to the Commissioners. We're not prepared to
18 release it to the public yet, the full video,
19 because we're coordinating with the Wayne County
20 Prosecutor's Office in terms of review for
21 criminality in that situation. So it won't be
22 released to the public, but we can definitely make a
23 viewing time for any of the Commissioners.

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, sir.

25 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Through the chair.

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

2 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you, Director
3 Graveline. So how then do we make that happen?

4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: You contact the
5 director through Mrs. White, contact through
6 Mrs. White. She'll coordinate that for you. Any
7 commissioners, contact Ms. White. She will
8 coordinate that for you.

9 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you.

10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We're going to move on
11 to the HR report.

12 I just want to in advance thank
13 Lieutenant Coles for filling in those very
14 significant shoes of being Director of Personnel.
15 As you know we've been absent without the Director
16 of Personnel for the last couple months, and
17 basically the work has been continued under the lead
18 of Lieutenant Coles. Now, we're going to hear from
19 Lieutenant Coles.

20 LIEUTENANT COLES: Good afternoon, Board.

21 (Response from the Board)

22 LIEUTENANT COLES: Thank you very much.
23 And I do also want to thank Vice-Chair Annie Holt
24 for coming down and sitting with us and having the
25 opportunity to address us with the concerns that she

1 had and some of the questions that she had from the
2 Board. We are definitely, again, as we've stated
3 before, we're available for anyone to come down and
4 have questions or if you want to call us Zoom.
5 However you want to get in contact with us, we are
6 here. I had all of my supervisors that were
7 available sit down and so we can speak and had a
8 very open and frank dialogue about people coming
9 from the city, people who come from the suburbs or
10 anything else that she had a question with. We were
11 trying to address all those issues. We have
12 absolutely nothing to hide. And I'm extraordinarily
13 happy that we have the relationship that you all can
14 come down and just kind of, you know, talk to us and
15 interact with us any time it's available.

16 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Thank you,
17 Lieutenant Coles.

18 LIEUTENANT COLES: Yes, ma'am.

19 So our human resources bureau report for
20 August of 2020, this monthly report is provided as a
21 summary of our activities for the month of July
22 2020. Also provided are documents which contain
23 more detailed information with respect to staffing,
24 hiring and manpower by race and sex specifically for
25 sworn members.

1 For our employment, the current
2 department staffing numbers for sworn employees
3 positions that we have filled are 2,575. Positions
4 that we have vacant are 97, and our total positions
5 for sworn are 2,672.

6 For our civilian positions, we have 582
7 positions filled, we have 161 positions vacant and
8 we have 743 total positions.

9 As it relates to our sworn recruiting,
10 for January, the total applicants that we've had was
11 438 for the month, ones that we have in process were
12 five. The number that we had hired who started
13 their application in July was zero. The lack of
14 interest that we had for that month was four,
15 temporarily disqualified 180, permanently
16 disqualified were 42 and the number that we have
17 still awaiting in post testing is 207.

18 When we talk about our testing, for the
19 month of July, the testing that we have for written,
20 we have 91 scheduled, 62 actually appeared, 49
21 passed, 13 failed, 2 rescheduled, and we had 27 who
22 were no-shows.

23 As it goes to the physical agility
24 testing, we had 120 scheduled, 81 appeared, 41 of
25 those passed, 40 failed, 9 rescheduled and there was

1 30 no-shows. We did not have a graduating class in
2 the month of July. The total new hires that we
3 actually did have in July, we put a class in of 32
4 sworn members. So our total new hires for July 2020
5 was 32. Our Detroit residency information, for
6 sworn members we had the ones who reside in Detroit
7 are 577 sworn, and we had 338 civilians and 31
8 police assistants.

9 Our attrition numbers for July, sworn
10 members, we had 22 civilians, 11 police assistants,
11 one, for a total attrition for the month of 34.

12 Our leave of absence and restricted duty
13 was sworn FMLA continuous was 22, FMLA intermittent
14 was 110. On medical leave, there were three,
15 military leave was three, restricted was 130,
16 disabled is 61 and sick 12.

17 For our sworn personnel suspensions, we
18 had 12 police officers and zero detectives and zero
19 lieutenants for a total of 12 who are on suspension.

20 Our monthly separation was 22. In our
21 drop program, we have a total of 547 members.

22 That would conclude my report and I'll
23 entertain any questions.

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioners? Well,
25 thank you, Lieutenant Coles.

1 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Thank you, Lieutenant
2 Coles.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Appreciate your work.
4 And I just want to also acknowledge AC Stair, who's
5 been very, very important as you well know,
6 coordinating that position. So we appreciate you,

7 LIEUTENANT COLES: Thank you, sir.

8 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Chair.

9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

10 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes, sir, I just
11 wanted to say Lieutenant Coles, is this Lieutenant
12 Brandon Coles?

13 LIEUTENANT COLES: No, ma'am. This is
14 Lieutenant James Coles with an S.

15 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Okay, I'm sorry. I
16 thought it was -- that's okay. Well, thank you so
17 much. Excellent what you're doing.

18 LIEUTENANT COLES: Thank you, thank you.
19 ma'am.

20 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Now, the next item
21 would be the 5th Precinct, Commander Ewing, and
22 Captain Williams, Agent Bernoe that's on the east
23 side of Detroit. I lived in the 5th precinct for
24 quite some time, and I just wanted to acknowledge
25 Commander Ewing for his years of service to the 5th

1 Precinct, also years of service to the community and
2 the City of Detroit and Detroit Police Department.
3 It's outstanding. I'm a little biased because I
4 knew Ewing. So Commander Ewing, your presentation,
5 Commander.

6 COMMANDER EWING: Good afternoon, Board.
7 (Response from the Board)

8 COMMANDER EWING: Through the chair. I
9 have a distinct privilege to be Commander of a
10 pretty bright precinct with a lot of engaged
11 citizens within the 5th Precinct. We have a couple
12 very enterprising community groups, Easton Village,
13 Cornerstone, Morningside, Jefferson Chalmers and
14 River Bend, just to name a few. With that I enjoy
15 being a commander of a precinct for some very
16 engaged officers, and you all know through this time
17 of COVID and through the times of these protests,
18 the members of the 5th Precinct, these men and women
19 have continued to do great jobs out there since this
20 time.

21 So without further delay we're going to
22 get into some I think, some great reporting. We'll
23 talk about the stats and for that, I'm going to have
24 my partner, Captain Keith Williams, chime in.

25 CAPTAIN WILLIAMS: Good afternoon,

1 everybody. So just looking at crime, I'm going to
2 break down this draft for you. Just looking at
3 crime in the 5th precinct, we started the year out
4 with a 40 percent reduction in homicides in the
5 first quarter. I think the second quarter we saw a
6 28 percent reduction compared to last year and as of
7 today's date, we currently have a 33 percent
8 reduction in homicides which equates to the highest
9 reduction in the city.

10 As far as criminal sexual conduct is
11 concerned, our criminal sexual conduct cases saw no
12 change as the number is even with last year's
13 numbers at 37. It was consistent from last year.
14 This year has been almost all of the criminal sexual
15 conduct cases are known offenders. So there is no
16 stranger-danger patterns of concerns that we have
17 noticed.

18 As far as aggravated assault, we saw a
19 slight increase in aggravated assaults this year
20 with an eight percent increase year to date. What
21 we noticed is that 43 percent of those aggravated
22 assault cases are domestic violence. So our
23 strategy has been to team with our Domestic Violence
24 Unit on apprehension efforts. We have a very close
25 relationship with the commanding officer there. And

1 those that are not domestic violence related, we
2 relentlessly pursue all known offenders. We also
3 continue to work with our victim advocates to ensure
4 that the victims are getting services when
5 necessary.

6 As far as property crimes are concerned,
7 here in the 5th Precinct we are down in every
8 statistical category. We had a 49 percent reduction
9 in burglaries, a 20 percent reduction in larcenies
10 and a five percent reduction in motor vehicle theft,
11 which gives us a total reduction of 28 percent in
12 property crimes in the precinct.

13 As far as our nonfatal shootings are
14 concerned, we saw no change from last year in the
15 first quarter, as the numbers were even. We saw a
16 28 percent increase in the second quarter which was
17 consistent with the rest of the city. Our strategy
18 was to conduct targeted enforcement in those areas
19 where our shootings occurred and go after our known
20 offenders.

21 We've been partnering with our Gang
22 Intelligence Units and Cease Fire doing custom
23 notifications, so not only to our suspects but to
24 our victims. What this has allowed us to do is have
25 services offered to not only our victims, whether

1 it's housing relocation or other resources so that
2 our victims can feel more comfortable providing
3 information to us. It also has given us the
4 opportunity to speak to the families of the suspects
5 to say, hey, we know that your loved ones have been
6 getting in trouble, but there are some services that
7 you can be offered as well to assist you with
8 curving the behavior that your loved one is
9 displaying. So we have completed a number of these,
10 of visits to both victims and suspects. I think it
11 is working. We currently have a 10 percent
12 reduction year-to-date in non-fatal shootings. So
13 we are again in almost statistical category down in
14 crime.

15 As far as robberies are concerned,
16 year-to-date, we have a 12 percent reduction rate in
17 our robberies and a 59 percent reduction within the
18 last 28 days.

19 As far as some of our strategies, you
20 know, we've been concentrating on taking guns off
21 the street. Year to date we've taken off 193 guns
22 year to date. We've taken 50 guns in the last 28
23 days, and that number went up within the last two
24 days. We pulled a lot of guns off the street.

25 So we're doing targeting enforcement in

1 areas. We're relentlessly pursuing our known
2 offenders. Those custom notifications that I just
3 talked about are working. We continue to partner
4 with NBAC to do bed checks with homicide and gang
5 intelligence, our major violators and vice
6 enforcement and continuing to partner with ATF for
7 those known offenders who continue to carry guns.
8 Supplement to our strategy is with guns that we send
9 our detectives to arraignment to assure that
10 appropriate bond-zone offenders are happening.
11 We're casting out door hangers on all shootings so
12 that witnesses can contact police in private, and we
13 are partnering with the 9th Precinct on a
14 community-based crime reduction grant. That would
15 enable us to convene across that to partnership and
16 implement a community-based crime prevention
17 strategy in an area surrounding the SCA investment.

18 So that's what we have as far as crime is
19 concerned. I'm going to have the commander go ahead
20 and talk about the community programs that we've
21 been doing in the 5th Precinct.

22 COMMANDER EWING: Thank you. Through the
23 Chair, in the beginning Mr. Bell talked about the
24 confidence going down to 48 percent across the
25 country with regard to law enforcement. One of the

1 strategies that we have in the 5th Precinct, and I
2 know the commissioner has attended a police
3 community forum in the 5th Precinct before. This
4 forum is designed to increase the community
5 relations between law enforcement and the citizens.
6 It gives both sides an opportunity to talk about the
7 harm that's done in terms of police encounters,
8 things of that nature. We sit down and have honest
9 conversation back and forth how the citizens feel
10 about policing, and the officers are able to respond
11 from their perspective of why they do certain things
12 the way they do them. We have another one coming up
13 on August 22nd. That will be, I think, our 13th
14 installment of this, but I want to kind of highlight
15 what we did on July 18.

16 Just recently due to the recent protests,
17 COVID, we kind of got together and thought about the
18 process, what about our officers, what's in their
19 mind's sake. Do they really understand what the
20 protest is all about? So we sat down with law
21 enforcement officers, both black, white, any other
22 nationality who may be at the precinct, and we start
23 having candid conversations. And what we ended up
24 doing was going back through the whole history of
25 the Detroit Police Department. When I say the whole

1 history, we took it way back to the Emancipation.
2 We talked about slavery, we talked about how we got
3 here in the city of Detroit. We walked through the
4 13th Documentary, we talked about the 13th Amendment
5 to the Constitution. We talked about the inception
6 of the Detroit Police Department back in 1865. We
7 talked about the Malice Green incident. What we did
8 was give them an opportunity to understand where
9 some of the anger may be coming from from the
10 citizens for which they police. Out of that there
11 was a six-hour forum. A lot of hot moments from
12 both sides, but what it ended up having and being a
13 benefit for us is to give some of these officers who
14 were not alive during this time when all these
15 things happened, the '68 riots, things of that
16 nature, give them a birdseye view of what's going
17 on.

18 So what ends up happening is when they're
19 out there confronted every day on traffic stops by
20 this anger, it gives them a sense of better
21 understanding of where the anger comes from. And
22 that worked out very successful for us. We have the
23 officers really begging to do it again. We plan on
24 doing something in the near future with regard to
25 that.

1 We hold weekly Zoomings, even though
2 we've been in this COVID situation, we've had about
3 30 Zoom meetings since the inset of the COVID,
4 that's been going great. As I mentioned, the
5 community groups at the beginning of this meeting,
6 they're constantly on the meetings every week.

7 As far as NPOs during this COVID, we
8 still had the opportunity to give some smiles on
9 faces to some graduates who actually graduated who
10 didn't get the opportunity to go to the facilities
11 at their prospective schools, we held ten graduation
12 parades, we've disbursed over 500 PPEs to the
13 citizens, and we continue to work with community
14 every day to make it a better place for both law
15 enforcement and the citizens.

16 And that, Board, concludes my report.
17 Any questions?

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Commander.

19 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes, Mr. Chair.

20 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

21 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you.

22 Commander, you're in my door. This is Commission
23 Burch, but then you knew me as Shirley Burch in the
24 11th Precinct.

25 COMMANDER EWING: Yes, ma'am.

1 COMMISSIONER BURCH: What year were you
2 with us?

3 COMMANDER EWING: Ms. Burch, you know, I
4 was with you several times. I was there as a
5 lieutenant, I was there as sergeant-lieutenant and a
6 commander twice. So I was there for the majority of
7 my career.

8 COMMISSIONER BURCH: That's what I
9 thought. Oh, my gosh, I just want to say wonderful,
10 excellent report, but I wanted to ask you when you
11 mentioned the door knocker, have you ever included
12 the crime stoppers, because they have a program of a
13 door knocker also. Have you included them in your
14 program?

15 COMMANDER EWING: So their door knocker
16 is separate from ours. We give out both, but ours
17 is more geared towards answering the community
18 complaints. So If NPOs go out to a location,
19 someone calls and says maybe there's a barking dog
20 or there's a neighbor dispute, we go knock on the
21 door and they're not at home, the door knockers know
22 that we actually came by and we visited. It gives
23 them an opportunity to know that the police answered
24 their call. It gives a number to get back in
25 contact with us so we can service you.

1 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Okay. Thank you.

2 Commander, do you remember his name? He's

3 Investigator Cromwell.

4 COMMANDER EWING: Yes.

5 COMMISSIONER BURCH: At that time there
6 was a harassment regarding what Commissioner Brown
7 was saying about the parking enforcement, how they
8 used to come in the neighborhood and give citizens
9 tickets when they were parked where, for instance,
10 it was a berm. Do you remember some of that
11 instance that you came to the rescue with your
12 professionalism and your fairness to help the
13 citizens, do you remember that?

14 COMMANDER EWING: I don't remember that
15 specifically, Ms. Burch. I know you and I had a
16 number of conversations when I was there as a
17 commander. You kept me on task on a regular basis.

18 COMMISSIONER BURCH: No, no, you kept --
19 don't say that. Don't say that, no. No, it's just
20 that we worked together just like you're doing in
21 Number 5.

22 COMMANDER EWING: Yes, ma'am.

23 COMMISSIONER BURCH: You know, that was
24 during the era of Mildred Kyle.

25 COMMANDER EWING: Yes.

1 COMMISSIONER BURCH: So, I'm saying I
2 come from a tutelage of watching women and men work
3 together. I just miss you and I'm glad to hear your
4 voice. I have often said where is Commander Ewing.
5 Now I know you're in Number 5.

6 COMMANDER EWING: Thank you, Ms. Burch.

7 COMMISSIONER BURCH: So God bless you.

8 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Through the chair.

9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Holt.

10 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Thank you, Commander
11 Ewing, for your presentation and Captain Williams as
12 well. You mentioned that you had been having --
13 your precinct has been having community relations
14 Zoom meetings, did I understand that?

15 COMMANDER EWING: Yes, ma'am.

16 COMMISSIONER HOLT: To whom do I know to
17 receive an invitation to those meetings?

18 COMMANDER EWING: You're looking at him
19 right here.

20 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Okay. So I can,
21 what, text you, call you?

22 COMMANDER EWING: Yes, just send me your
23 email address and I'll include you in.

24 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Okay, thank you a
25 lot. I appreciate that.

1 COMMANDER EWING: No problem.

2 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Any other

3 Commissioner?

4 I want to thank you, Commander Ewing.

5 Make sure that we get the information because I've
6 been guilty of not attending. Would you share that
7 with Mrs. White and any other commissioner who might
8 want to drop in? We try to establish that type of
9 rapport, and I need to pick it up because you are my
10 commander. And, Captain Williams, thank you.

11 You've been very professional since we met when we
12 was at the academy.

13 CAPTAIN WILLIAMS: Appreciate that.

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I'm glad you're on
15 this side of Detroit.

16 CAPTAIN WILLIAMS: Thank you.

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. I hope to
18 interact with both of you in the near, near future,
19 perhaps as soon as friday. Thank you.

20 We're going to move on to Ms. White, the
21 Board Secretary.

22 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes, thank you,
23 Chairperson Bell.

24 On the Board, if you could please refer
25 to your agenda and your Tuesday packet for this

1 week, and I will simply highlight a few of the items
2 listed in the incoming correspondence for a complete
3 list of all of the incoming correspondence, but I'll
4 just go through a few items. And they are as
5 follows: 2 through 5, correspondence from Chief of
6 Police, James E. Craig regarding implicit training
7 bias, providing an overview of the department's
8 training curriculum, the program outlines for
9 implicit bias training and the required number of
10 hours for training and participation in both the
11 implicit bias training and the full training
12 curriculum for the DPD.

13 Number 3, letter from Chief of Police,
14 James E. Craig regarding the recommendation to
15 promote to the rank of detective, which was already
16 discussed earlier.

17 Number 4, correspondence regarding Texas
18 Observer news article entitled, "How the San Antonio
19 Police are Re-thinking Mental Health," and this
20 correspondence was shared by a concerned citizen,
21 sharing program recommendations regarding mental
22 health professionals, responding to mental health
23 emergencies instead of first responders responding
24 to those mental health emergencies.

25 And Number 5 consists of a written

1 directive, 403.9, COVID-19 Department Policy, and
2 that was also included in your packet this week, and
3 the department transmitted that directive last week
4 and they are requesting for the Board's final
5 approval. Staff reviewed the policy on COVID-19,
6 and overall the directive is outlining the protocol
7 and procedures for department members' adherence
8 based on the Centers for Disease Control and
9 Prevention Guidelines. And so this directive is
10 providing department members with information on
11 precautions, expectations and procedures for all
12 department members to follow based on COVID-19
13 health precautions.

14 The policy also covers, of course,
15 important definitions, procedures outlining
16 workplace precautions and symptomatic and COVID-19,
17 positive members, also indicating the procedures
18 with regards to members who are experiencing
19 COVID-19 related symptoms and measures, and all of
20 that information was contained in your Tuesday
21 packet, and there was a report again completed by
22 staff outlining what the policy consisted of. So at
23 this time I would request for a vote on the policy
24 directive on COVID-19 relating to the department's
25 transmitted directive.

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioners.

2 COMMISSIONER HOLT: So moved.

3 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Support.

4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's been properly
5 moved and supported. Discussion?

6 Those in favor, yes?

7 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Yes.

8 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Yes.

9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Those opposed, no.
10 Ms. White?

11 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes, the motion passed.

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

13 SECRETARY WHITE: And Chairperson Bell, I
14 also did have one last item with regards to the NACo
15 summaries. Again, staff has been attending the NACo
16 conference each week since the beginning of the NACo
17 Conference. And I wanted to just give a brief
18 overview of some of the staff report that was
19 transmitted on last week, and additional reports are
20 forthcoming based on the webinars that were provided
21 this week.

22 So just to highlight a few of the
23 sessions, one of them consisted of Implementing
24 Procedural Justice, Strategies for Analyzing Police
25 Stops, and this particular workshop session

1 explained the concept of procedural justice which
2 focuses broadly on the extent to which people
3 perceive that they have been treated fairly and
4 respectfully during a police-citizen encounter.

5 The next session workshop that was
6 summarized included Community and Stakeholder
7 Engagement, Intensive Part One, emphasizing 13
8 principles of civilian oversight along with
9 strategies and tactics for maintaining effective
10 community involvement and community outreach.

11 The third session consisted of Community
12 and Stakeholder Engagement in Census Part 2,
13 highlighting principles of servant leadership,
14 community -- communicating effectively and other
15 core elements for effective communications and
16 engagement for oversight for law enforcement
17 agencies.

18 And the last summary consisted of
19 Evidence of Effect, Measuring and Reporting the
20 Impact of Oversight, Discussing the use of
21 Statistics and Quantitative Methods to help answer
22 key accountability questions with regards to
23 oversight agencies.

24 And, again, we will transmit the
25 summaries from this week that consisted of the

1 following: The Use of Force, Calming a Crisis
2 Strategies to Reduce the Use of Force. Civilian
3 Oversight 101 was another workshop held, and then
4 the third workshop consisted of -- it was entitled,
5 "What Went Wrong. Deficiencies in the Investigation
6 of an Officer-Involved Shooting." And, again, we
7 will make sure to transmit those summaries to you.
8 And thank you again to staff specifically and
9 including Investigator Tiffany Steward and all Board
10 of Police Commissioner staff for your cooperation in
11 developing those summaries. Thank you.

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Ms. White.
13 Any questions for Mrs. White? If not, thank you,
14 Ms. White, once again.

15 Before we move on to unfinished business,
16 I just want to -- I forgot to acknowledge J.
17 Henderson, 5th Precinct Police Relations Chair; is
18 he still on the call?

19 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Community relations?

20 BOARD SECRETARY WHITE: We're looking for
21 him, Chairperson Bell.

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Ms. White, if you see
23 him, move him up to be Number One two-minute
24 speaker, please.

25 BOARD SECRETARY WHITE: Okay.

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: If you see him, if
2 he's still on the call. I invited him to attend and
3 I know Commander Ewing acknowledged his presence. I
4 forgot to speak to him. We want to give him that
5 opportunity.

6 Also, Commissioner Griffie and
7 Commissioner Brown, can you hear me?

8 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Yes.

9 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Yes.

10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Could both of you join
11 me in terms of the Chairman's remarks next week if
12 you're going to be in attendance?

13 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Yes.

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Brown.

15 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Yes.

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. The next
17 item will be unfinished business.

18 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Mr. Chair.

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Davis.

20 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I know that the City
21 Council and their staff is not returning until the
22 Coleman A. Young Municipal Building until the first
23 of the year. So my question to the Board is: Is
24 this Board going to do the same for our staff and
25 the OCI staff? If not, when are we going to vote on

1 a date for the staff to return to work?

2 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We are working through
3 that now. We did not vote for them to leave. We're
4 complying -- we don't go by what others, we go by
5 primarily DPD, Detroit Police Department, and what's
6 been advised. So, we're working on that. We are in
7 the process of making sure all the staff is tested,
8 as you well know. Then from there we would probably
9 do a 50 percent in terms of staff reporting to make
10 sure we abide by the COVID issue and safety and
11 (inaudible). So that's what's in the plans now.

12 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay. So right now
13 the staff has not fully returned?

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: No, they are not.
15 They won't be fully returned any time soon. We're
16 looking at 50 percent. We're making sure -- first
17 of all, they all have to be tested. We're going
18 through that process and we're also making sure that
19 we're in compliance. As you well know, DPD is up
20 and running. Also we're abiding by their format,
21 staff of the BOC is in place, but they're a much
22 smaller staff, as you well know, much smaller, but
23 they're making sure they adhere to all the policies
24 and stages of that process. Thank you.

25 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: So our staff is

1 there, but not the OCI, is that what you're saying?

2 CHAIRPERSON BELL: OCI is not there
3 except for a skeleton crew, administration is
4 working. That's about two or three individuals.

5 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: But our staff is
6 there?

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Our staff is in place,
8 that's correct.

9 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Couldn't that be
10 dangerous?

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Sir, I just indicated
12 to you, we are following all the guidelines, we're
13 following all the guidelines in terms of abiding --
14 they've been in place for a couple weeks now, Ms.
15 White, two, three weeks.

16 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes, sir.

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We follow the
18 guidelines. We have to serve this community, so we
19 follow the guidelines.

20 Unfinished business. If not, new
21 business.

22 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Chairman, I had my
23 hand up for unfinished business.

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir, go ahead.

25 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I'd like to move to

1 end the DPD's facial recognition.

2 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Support.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Once again, for the
4 umpteenth time, the motion is out of order. We do
5 not have any authority to act on that motion.
6 Therefore, the motion is not in order.

7 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Mr. Chairman, point
8 of order, City Council is in charge of budgetary,
9 but the Detroit Board of Police Commissioners is in
10 charge of administration oversight of the Detroit
11 Police Department.

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Burton,
13 if you want to send me some documentation to
14 challenge what we have already been indicating to
15 you, then you are free to put that in writing.
16 Thank you.

17 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Is the board
18 attorney available; can he respond to it?

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: No, he's not. Thank
20 you.

21 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Would you like for
22 the Board attorney to respond?

23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We're moving on, sir.
24 New business. Ms. White, we have an
25 issue with collision shop.

1 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Wait, I have new
2 business.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am. I'm
4 sorry. Do you have an announcement?

5 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes.

6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Wait for the
7 announcement, please. Thank you.

8 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes, sir, I also wanted
9 to indicate to the Honorable Board that the Board's
10 office did receive unfortunately a letter of
11 resignation from Ms. Delane Richards, our legal
12 assistant. And so I did also want to indicate that
13 to the Honorable Board. So we wish her well.

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. So under
15 new business, collision, is that still on the
16 agenda?

17 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Ms. White, are you
19 going to bring that forth?

20 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes, and Captain
21 Parrish is also on the line.

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I guess we'll hear
23 from Captain Parrish first. We have documentation
24 that's been sent out to the Board; is that correct?

25 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes, sir.

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Captain
2 Parrish.

3 SECRETARY WHITE: Captain Parrish, your
4 microphone is unmuted.

5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Are you in the process
6 of admitting Mr. Wyrick, Attorney to the Board?

7 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes, his microphone is
8 also unmuted, and through the Chair we can move to
9 Attorney Wyrick while we contact Captain Parrish.

10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

11 SECRETARY WHITE: Attorney Wyrick.

12 ATTORNEY WYRICK: Good afternoon.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay, thank you.

14 ATTORNEY WYRICK: Can you hear and see
15 me?

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We hear you, we don't
17 need to see you.

18 ATTORNEY WYRICK: Okay.

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: (Laughing) Thank you.

20 MS. WHITE: Attorney Wyrick.

21 ATTORNEY WYRICK: Yes. May it please
22 this Honorable Body, this is a new matter of B and F
23 Collision. You may recall that they had a hearing
24 previously a couple months ago in June of 2020, a
25 couple months ago. This hearing basically, it

1 involves -- and I'll go through the summary that was
2 sent to the Board a couple days ago. Actually on
3 March 11, 2020 a tower, a 15 year employer by the
4 name of Edward Moody, took a laptop and Mac book
5 computer home from a vehicle he had towed. He lives
6 in the area of Evergreen in the city of Detroit,
7 48228. The laptop actually belonged to a young man
8 whose mother's car was stolen that he was driving.
9 The young man who owned the laptop used a Find My
10 Application to find the location of the tow truck
11 driver's home. From there police were actually sent
12 to the home basically to retrieve the laptop.

13 The two issues here is whether or not is
14 there substantial evidence that B and F Collision
15 violated the rules for police authorized towers,
16 and, two, did B and F maintain substandard protocols
17 within its towing operation by permitting employees
18 to remove personal property from vehicles and to
19 take the property home.

20 As I referenced, B and F Collision is
21 currently, pursuant to the Board's June 2020
22 decision, serving a 45-day suspension involving a
23 situation and involving a towing rotation whereby a
24 DPD officer was sending a disproportionate number of
25 tows to them between the years of 2017 and 2019, and

1 also that a particular officer also failed to
2 contact dispatch for a tow which more or less led to
3 the investigation. But those are facts separate and
4 aside from this one.

5 Under the rules for police authorized
6 towers, it states very specifically and is City
7 Code, 55-2, "The City may immediately terminate any
8 towing permit with a tow company for fraud or
9 criminal conduct by the tow company or its
10 employees." So really the question here is whether
11 or not B and F through his particular employee
12 committed any type of fraud or criminal conduct.
13 It's important to know, however, that on May 19,
14 2020, the Wayne County Prosecutor's office did deny
15 a warrant request for criminal conduct against this
16 driver due to insufficient evidence. However, in
17 talking to Captain Parrish, my understanding is that
18 the Department has actually continued to press the
19 Wayne County Prosecutor's office for a possible
20 criminal case. So Captain Parrish may want to speak
21 to that in a few minutes.

22 It's also important to note, from the
23 standpoint of analysis, that in conducting an
24 investigation, Officer Young from the Detroit Police
25 Department contacted ten different tow companies

1 within the city of Detroit, which I have listed in
2 my report. I won't name them all, but all of them
3 prohibit employees from taking the personal property
4 of others home.

5 The Detroit Police Department
6 recommendation is for the BOPC to basically have a
7 hearing on this and to make a decision. They
8 recommended that the permit be terminated. My
9 recommendation is that the BOPC conduct a hearing
10 and also once that hearing is conducted, then the
11 BOPC can (lost audio).

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Attorney
13 Wyrick and we do see you now. Thank you. Captain
14 Parrish.

15 CAPTAIN PARRISH: Yes, can the Board hear
16 me?

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

18 CAPTAIN PARRISH: Very sorry for that.
19 The computer was not working for me, so I'm
20 operating off the cell phone. Just to echo the
21 sentiments of Attorney Wyrick, the department's
22 position at this point in time is that there is
23 substantial evidence of violations of the rules for
24 police authorized towing, and that the matters at
25 issue are of sufficient gravity to potentially

1 warrant termination of the police authorized tower's
2 permit. So, therefore, we are petitioning the Board
3 to hold a hearing on this matter.

4 There is a criminal matter pending, a
5 warrant against the involved tow truck driver. It
6 was submitted to the Wayne County Prosecutor's
7 Office. However, the award was initially denied,
8 but based on new evidence, has been resubmitted and
9 we are told that we'll have a final determination on
10 that matter in approximately one week. So,
11 hopefully, when we return, that matter will be
12 resolved.

13 However, the issue at hand is not just
14 the employee, but the company itself, which is what
15 we'd like the Board, in addition to hearing the
16 matter of the employee, for the Board to hear the
17 circumstances surrounding the practices of the
18 company in general. So with that, we would like to
19 recommend the Board convene a hearing on this
20 matter.

21 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Ms. White, could we
22 schedule that hearing at our next session next week;
23 is that feasible?

24 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes, sir.

25 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Through the chair,

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

2 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: I just want to say
3 that this it very concerning that we keep having to
4 go into session to talk about this company, and I
5 look forward to the hearing because I really want to
6 put this issue to bed. Frankly, they keep putting
7 us in this spot, when we have vendors that don't
8 want to cooperate by the rules.

9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Right. Wouldn't this
10 be an open-type hearing?

11 ATTORNEY WYRICK: Yes, it could be, yes.

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, okay. I think
13 that would be a public hearing on this matter. It
14 doesn't meet the requirement for a closed session.
15 We'll check into that. We hope to follow that
16 process. Duly noted.

17 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Through the Chair.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

19 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Just a quick
20 question. My memory just escapes me, but didn't we
21 vote to suspend his license?

22 ATTORNEY WYRICK: As I stated and as it
23 reflects on page 3 of my report, this same towing
24 company on a separate issue was just before the
25 Board in June of 2020, and at that time the Board

1 issued a 45 day suspension for a separate incident.

2 COMMISSIONER BROWN: And that 45 days has
3 been served?

4 ATTORNEY WYRICK: I believe it was. I
5 guess we would have to count from the exact date
6 that the suspension started in June.

7 CAPTAIN PARRISH: The company was
8 suspended following the Board's issuance of that
9 suspension. They were reinstated after the 45-day
10 period, and so they are currently on the police
11 authorized towing rotation.

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. That's why
13 you're requesting this action.

14 CAPTAIN PARRISH: Thank you.

15 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We will have that
16 hearing next week then.

17 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Mr. Chairman, under
18 new business.

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

20 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Mr. Chairman, under
21 new business and I'm not talking about nobody, I'm
22 just talking about what I'm talking about, and that
23 is that I'm just -- what about members suing? I
24 need to know from the law department if it's a
25 conflict of interest for one of our own to be --

1 just is it a conflict to be sitting and the person
2 is suing the Commission and the city, is it a
3 conflict? I'm just asking.

4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Can you elaborate?

5 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: My understanding is
6 that we've been sued by one of our board members. I
7 want to know -- I saw it in the news. Are you not
8 aware of it?

9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: By who? I'm not
10 aware, perhaps Ms. White can look into that and we
11 can report back to the Board as soon as possible.

12 SECRETARY WHITE: Yes, sir.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Thank you,
14 Commissioner Holley, for bringing that to my
15 attention. Announcement. Commissioner Burch.

16 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes, it's my turn?

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

18 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I wanted to announce
19 to everybody 1200 jobs are coming to District 3.
20 There's going to be tonight at 6 o'clock, Mayor
21 Duggan will be on the Zoom conference regarding the
22 distribution center which is called Amazon will be
23 up at the State Fairgrounds. Also the MDOT is going
24 to have a center there or busses there, okay. So I
25 think that's pretty good news for the area.

1 Everybody hear that? You can go on the website to
2 listen--

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's great news, great
4 news.

5 COMMISSIONER BURCH: All right. I just
6 wanted to share that news with everybody.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

8 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you.

9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: The next meeting will
10 be on Thursday, August 20, and thereafter, we'll be
11 meeting August 27, same time, at 3 P.M. They both
12 will be virtual.

13 Now we move on to oral communication from
14 the audience. Mr. Brown, is J. Henderson still with
15 us or not?

16 SECRETARY WHITE: Ms. Blossom.

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL. Ms. Blossom, I'm
18 sorry.

19 MS. BLOSSOM: Good afternoon,
20 Mr. Chairman, you have ten speakers, and I will call
21 them in the sets of three and just to reiterate the
22 two-minute time limit. We first have Mr. Eric
23 Blount.

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Ms. Blossom, if I may
25 interrupt you. Is J. Henderson still on the call?

1 Do you see a J. Henderson?

2 SECRETARY WHITE: No, sir, I looked for
3 him earlier, unless he's come back. Let me double
4 check.

5 Mr. Henderson has left the room.

6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. We can
7 move on. Mr. Blount, I guess.

8 SECRETARY WHITE: Mr. Blount.

9 MR. BLOUNT: Yes, can you hear me, Board?

10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

11 MR. BLOUNT: Yes, good afternoon. For
12 the record my name is Eric Blount. I'm a minister
13 at Sacred Heart Catholic Church here in Detroit and
14 I'm a life-long Detroiter.

15 This national survey revealing an all
16 time low in regards to public confidence in police
17 departments is no surprise, and it's growing lower
18 each day here in Detroit. And let me give you just
19 two examples that surfaced here in this meeting.

20 Director Graveline agreed to supply the
21 video of protesters' interaction with police, but
22 not to the public. When DPD knows it's in the
23 right, then the body-worn camera videos can be
24 released within hours, not weeks, not months, not
25 years, as in the case of Duane Jones, who viciously

1 beat a naked woman in the hospital. The bystander's
2 video is the reason why we know of this police
3 brutality.

4 Secondly, as far as officers' discipline
5 is concerned, all 12 officers' names and the reason
6 why they are on discipline should be revealed. If
7 the Wayne County Prosecutor can release 35 officers
8 in the Brady-Giglio policy; then why can't DPD
9 release the 12 officers' names, the reasons why they
10 are included, the additions and the removals and the
11 reasons why?

12 Lastly, the protesters demand for firing
13 Chief Craig and Duggan and defunding the police is
14 nothing to laugh at. These people, young, old,
15 black, white, suburban and Detroiters are putting
16 their bodies on the line for what they believe are
17 needed changes to ensure that all people are awarded
18 life, liberty and the pursuit of happiness. I yield
19 my time.

20 SECRETARY WHITE: The next speaker is
21 Justice for Robert and Mike, and he'll be followed
22 by Ashley Smith.

23 MR. DELLICOLLI: This is Anthony
24 Dellicolli from Detroit DSA. Five or \$6,000 is an
25 up-front cost for businesses to participate in

1 Project Green Light. It's an obvious pay to play
2 shake down scheme. This is just one of the reasons
3 that Project Green Light needs to be ended. It's
4 time to move from a reactionary vision of safety
5 with more surveillance to a proactive and a
6 localistic vision of safety. It reinvests in things
7 like public housing and health resources. Why does
8 the Board waste time trying to weaponize DPD to
9 remove their neighbor's kiddie pools or their
10 church's parking lot or clean their church's parking
11 lot, but can't be bothered or hold them accountable
12 for shooting four Detroit citizens in the month of
13 July.

14 How does it take six hours for DPD
15 officers to understand why protesters are in the
16 streets? DPD officers themselves are the ones
17 showing up dressed in riot gear, to beat protesters
18 with batons, tear gas them, shoot them with
19 nonlethal beanbag rounds and run them over with
20 their SUVs. The video of the SUV incident needs to
21 be released to the public now. The fact that
22 members of this Board are laughing at the demands
23 being put forth by protesters is a clear indication
24 that this Board does not support the movement at
25 all. This is a joke.

1 Here's a list of American cities that
2 have banned facial recognition technology, San
3 Francisco, Austin, Oakland, Berkeley, Alameda, Santa
4 Crux. Somerville, Brooklyn, Cambridge, Springfield,
5 North Hampton, East Hampton, Portland, Maine.
6 Police commissioners in the city with the largest
7 percentage of black citizens, you all look
8 ridiculous for continuing to be complicit in the use
9 of this racist technology, refusing to ban it. You
10 all will be remembered for doing this on this Board.
11 Thank you.

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

13 SECRETARY WHITE: Ashley Smith followed
14 by Megan S.

15 MS. SMITH: Hi, my name is Ashley Smith.
16 I'm the sister of Shaunee Smith who was a victim of
17 police brutality in Detroit. Since I've been coming
18 to this meeting, to these meetings, there's not only
19 been a lack of accountability with the police
20 brutality that we saw for my sister, but there's
21 also been a number of other things that are
22 concerning to include use of facial recognition, you
23 know, the incident where unfortunately we had
24 citizens of Detroit and others, you know, with the
25 police car and there's a lack of accountability.

1 But unfortunately there's a lack of faith in DPD.
2 When you have a lack of faith in the police
3 department, then, you know, it creates -- it creates
4 an atmosphere in which, you know, things like this
5 are going to happen, and I stated that from the
6 first time I've been on these calls. It's very
7 important that we have accountability for incidents
8 such as the Duane Jones. Instead of promoting
9 police officers, people have lost faith and I hope
10 that there's some type of way that we can restore
11 faith and that we can hold these officers
12 accountable. Thank you.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

14 SECRETARY WHITE: Megan S. followed by
15 Erin Dwyer.

16 MS. MEGAN: Good afternoon. My name is
17 Megan and I'm here with Detroit DSA. First I just
18 want to -- I actually thank you for being here every
19 week. I just want to say that the fellow
20 commentaries, we see you here every week. You don't
21 deserve to be going through this, to be begging for
22 some dignity for your sister, it's really unfair. I
23 just want to say, we see you and we hear you and we
24 support you.

25 Commissioners, we've been here at Detroit

1 DSA for weeks and demand that you end Project Green
2 Light and ban facial recognition technology. And I
3 want you to know that we will not back down.
4 Although it has become incredibly depressing to
5 watch you shut down this demand brought forward by
6 Commissioner Burton week after week, we will not
7 back down. Facial recognition is a dragnet policing
8 strategy where we are all seen as criminals needing
9 to be surveyed. Project Green Light is a pay to
10 police surveillance network.

11 To bring on someone from DPD to
12 essentially advertise Project Green Light today was
13 ridiculous. Surveillance does not make the city
14 feel safer. It makes us feel watched, scrutinized
15 and controlled. We did not consent to this use of
16 our data by DPD or the federal agencies they share
17 data with. We are not criminals until proven
18 guilty, and we do not support DPD fishing for
19 criminals in our community. We will not back down
20 until you vote yes on Commissioner Burton's motions
21 to ban facial recognition technology and end Project
22 Green Light or another one of you commissioners
23 summons the courage to put forward the motion
24 yourselves. Thank you.

25 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

1 DR. DWYER: Good afternoon. I am Dr.
2 Erin Dwyer, a DSA member and a Detroit resident who
3 is frankly exhausted with this Board's apathy,
4 vanity, and overt democracy or transparency. It's
5 aggravating to me that some on this board are more
6 concerned about one single baby pool on a lawn and a
7 little drag racing than they are about police
8 murdering three black men in the same week or people
9 being wrongly imprisoned in a racially prejudice
10 software and Project Green Light. When a problem
11 arises in my neighborhood, I talk it out, involve my
12 community to resolve the problem, and I strengthen
13 that community. What I don't do is call the cops.
14 I live in a majority black neighborhood in Detroit
15 and I don't want to see my neighbors shot. I don't
16 want to see any of the black and brown children and
17 adults in my neighborhood be falsely arrested and
18 imprisoned because this Board keeps passing the buck
19 on Project Green Light and other facial recognition
20 software.

21 The burden of proof shouldn't be on
22 Commissioner Burton to prove that it's out of BOPC
23 power to ban Project Green Light. Bell, you're the
24 one who keeps saying it, prove it. You bring
25 documents to next week's meeting.

1 Meanwhile, Commissioner Hernandez talks
2 about finding common purpose with his colleagues and
3 the public. And please support your colleagues who
4 have joined the public in calling for a ban on
5 Project Green Light, a ban on tear gas, rubber
6 bullets and an end to DPD receiving military
7 equipment through the 1033 program, and you call the
8 release for the June 20th protest.

9 Commissioner Hernandez speaks about
10 finding common purpose and listening with kindness.
11 If he had spoken with members of Hakeem Littleton's
12 family as I have, maybe he would join me in calling
13 for a full outside investigation into the murder of
14 Hakeem Littleton. I can't wait to vote for
15 Deborah Burke to take over Evette Griffie's seat
16 since Ms. Griffie can't even be bothered to attend
17 this meeting. I yield my time and look forward to
18 Tawanna Petty speaking soon.

19 BOARD SECRETARY: Ms. Cindy Darr followed
20 by Mark Young of the Lieutenant and Sergeant's unit.

21 MS. DARR: Can you hear me?

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

23 MS. DARR: Can you hear me?

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We can hear you.

25 MS. DARR: Okay, good. It seems like

1 even though you're passing the buck on the Green
2 Light, you can control police towing which I thought
3 was paid for through the City Council, they pay the
4 bills. How many people -- this is another topic.
5 How many community people got to come to those
6 workshops? I never heard about those, but those
7 should be community workshops for the police and the
8 community, not just the police, the ones that you
9 went through, Ms. White, are real interesting just
10 about 50 minutes ago.

11 Okay, the other thing, yesterday -- my
12 trees, the four trees in front of my house were cut
13 down. Now, let's back up. About a week ago, there
14 was a man -- a young man about 17 that was shot to
15 death in the Coney Island on Woodward and Peterboro.

16 Then a couple days ago, two police cars
17 came out, one parked on the corner and one parked
18 back by the apartment building across the street,
19 Woodstock, and he stood there with his camera and
20 was taking pictures toward the end of the block. I
21 figured maybe they're trying to figure out how to
22 put cameras on to the end of the block because
23 people do drugs there, they do crack, they sell
24 crack and they drink alcohol. All these things
25 deserve to go to jail, but, frankly, what they're

1 doing, they solved the problem that the guy got
2 murdered in the Peterboro Coney Island, they came
3 two days after they took pictures. By the way
4 they're (lost audio)

5 BOARD SECRETARY: Mr. Chairman, you have
6 Mark Young followed by Tom Stevens who sent a
7 comment before the 4 P.M. deadline, and then
8 Michelle George, will be your last speaker.

9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

10 MR. YOUNG: Hello, can you hear me?

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

12 MR. YOUNG: I just want to say thank you
13 to the awesome men and women that's out here every
14 day that's representing the Detroit Police
15 Department. From the top to the bottom, I want to
16 say thank you.

17 I, too, am a citizen of the city of
18 Detroit, and I'm also a leader with over 33 years.
19 I want to say thank you. I need them to know that
20 this is a thankless and an unappreciated job, but
21 they serve and they work hard anyway, 109 CCW
22 arrests for the week. That's not something new,
23 that's something that they've always been doing.
24 I've heard some people saying over the last three
25 weeks, over the last four weeks, that's not

1 something new either. They still work through it,
2 agitators, protesters, COVID-19, tough times,
3 through the summer. They sacrificed their summer
4 with their families to provide for the citizens
5 while working up to 16 hours plus more a day.
6 They're emotionally exhausted, they're tired, but
7 still unappreciated.

8 Twenty members positive for COVID right
9 now, 30 members quarantined, still thankless. 24/7,
10 365, these men and women have busted their behinds
11 for the citizens of Detroit. Let's take a moment
12 and thank them and appreciate the job that they're
13 out there doing under very difficult times while
14 Detroit shines, while other cities are going through
15 a turn for the worse. This is not something new for
16 us. We've always shined. We need to be more
17 thankful, more appreciative and more supportive.
18 Thank you.

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

20 SECRETARY WHITE: Mr. Chairman, Mike
21 Shane also met the 4 P.M. deadline. Mr. Shane.

22 MR. SHANE: Good afternoon. My name is
23 Mike Shane. I'm here representing the Coalition for
24 Police Transparency and Accountability. It's a
25 local coalition. It's composed of mainly

1 Detroiters. We have more Detroiters in our
2 coalition than the Detroit Police Department does.
3 We're composed of many activists groups, but we also
4 include a number of attorney groups, including the
5 ACLU, the National Lawyer's Guild, the Detroit --
6 excuse me, the Wayne County Neighborhood Defenders
7 and the National Conference of Black Attorneys --
8 Black Lawyers, excuse me.

9 I'll just read a short statement that I
10 sent to the board a few days ago: "The Coalition
11 for Police Transparency and Accountability cc'd the
12 Board of Commissioners via e-mail last week, and
13 that letter was delivered to Michigan Attorney
14 General, Dana Nessel. The letter requested an
15 independent investigation by the AG into the killing
16 of Hakeem Littleton by officers of the Detroit
17 Police Department on July 10, 2020. We are
18 requesting that the Board of Police Commissioners
19 also investigate the circumstances surrounding the
20 killing of Hakeem Littleton.

21 The coalition produced a video, using
22 publicly available DPD bodycam videos and arrived at
23 a strikingly different conclusion that contradicts
24 that of Detroit Police Chief, James Craig. This
25 should be sufficient cause to launch an independent

1 investigation into Mr. Littleton's death. The
2 Charter of the City of Detroit gives the Board of
3 Police Commissioners broad powers to conduct such an
4 investigation. Refer to Section 7-803 and 7-804 of
5 the current City Charter.

6 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Mr. Chairman, Tom
7 Steven's comment by the Internet Smart Sheet was to
8 encourage the protest and to object, call on fellow
9 Detroiters to insist that the police be subjected to
10 due process, oversight and accountability reform.

11 MS. GEORGE: Can you hear me?

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

13 MS. GEORGE: Hi, to Chairman Bell and I
14 want to say to the Board of Police Commissioners.

15 Chairman Bell, last week when I made the
16 comment about you being a police officer, I know you
17 are a citizen, but what I'm stating a lot of times
18 you think as a police officer. You'll always be one
19 in terms of decisions that you make. Just like I'll
20 always be a nurse, even though if I ever decide to
21 retire. But what I wanted to say, Lieutenant Mark
22 Young, we hear you, and I'm always in support of the
23 Detroit police officers. We know you put your lives
24 on the line and we've got COVID-19. It's a balance;
25 one has nothing to do with the other.

1 Just remember, the lynching of
2 George Floyd was a trigger event, and that's why I
3 commend Lieutenant Young, but I also commend Mr. --
4 Commander Ewing, thank you, because what he's doing,
5 he's bridging that gap when he talks about the
6 community and the 400 years our people have been
7 oppressed. So, I commend you also, Commander Ewing,
8 as well as Lieutenant Mark Young.

9 But I was the one that asked the deputy
10 chief, there have been four missing young ladies in
11 the last three months, and I wanted to know is there
12 any information on those young ladies?

13 I'm also concerned, Commissioner Griffie
14 and Chairman Bell, if you all have any power, and
15 Commissioner Griffie said she was going to shut down
16 the facial recognition, I have not heard from her,
17 and so I am concerned with that. Even though we may
18 not agree with a lot of things she said, she's still
19 a commissioner and we respect her, but she's been
20 quiet. So I hope she's not being quiet because of
21 what she stated, because she was right. But we're
22 praying that we would get a new administration, I
23 pray for that young lady, Ms. Smith, called in for
24 her sister. Corporal Jones had a responsibility to
25 go before that family. So you have to look at it

1 like that. That's why his name is going to continue
2 to be called out in the atmosphere. So thank you
3 for -- that's my comment.

4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

5 SECRETARY WHITE: Mr. Chair, that was
6 your last speaker today. Thank you.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. If there's
8 no other business before this body, the chair would
9 entertain a motion to adjourn.

10 COMMISSIONER HOLT: I move that we
11 adjourn.

12 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Second.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's been properly
14 moved and seconded. Discussion?

15 Those in favor, yes.

16 COMMISSIONERS: Yes.

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Those opposed?

18 We stand adjourned. Thank you. Have a
19 great evening.

20 (Meeting concluded about 5 o'clock P.M.)

21 — — —

22

23

24

25

1 CERTIFICATE OF NOTARY PUBLIC - COURT REPORTER

2


3 I do certify that the attached
4 proceedings were taken before me in the
5 above-entitled matter; that the proceedings
6 contained herein was by me reduced to writing by
7 means of stenography, and afterwards transcribed
8 upon a computer. The attached pages are a true and
9 complete transcript of the proceedings.

10 I do further certify that I am not
11 connected by blood or marriage with any of the
12 parties, their attorneys or agents, and that I am
13 not an employee of either of them, nor interested,
14 directly or indirectly, in the matter of
15 controversy.

16 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set
17 my hand and affixed my notarial seal at West
18 Bloomfield, Michigan, County of Oakland, this 25th
19 day of August 2020.

20

21



22

Theresa L. Roberts, CSR

23

Certified Shorthand Reporter - CSR-4870

24

Notary Public - Oakland County, MI

25

My commission expires 10-04-2020

DBOPC
08/13/2020

	19 38:17 74:13	32 48:3,5
<hr/> \$ <hr/>	193 53:21	33 27:8 51:7 90:18
\$1,000 29:17	194 27:7	338 48:7
\$150 29:17	1974 14:16	34 48:11
\$6,000 82:24		35 82:7
<hr/> 1 <hr/>	<hr/> 2 <hr/>	365 91:10
1 8:6 42:17,20,24,25 43:17,20 44:1	2 8:10 42:17,20 43:17,20 44:1 47:21 62:5 65:12	37 51:13
1,671 27:3 39:22	2,575 47:3	3:03 4:3
10 53:11 92:17	2,672 47:5	<hr/> 4 <hr/>
100 39:13	20 6:11 27:25 28:2 52:9 80:10	4 5:18 6:8 7:1 14:13 42:18,20 43:17,24 62:17 90:7 91:21
101 66:3	2017 73:25	40 47:25 51:4
1033 88:7	2019 17:19 38:17 73:25	400 94:6
109 27:4 90:21	2020 4:2,6 14:2 23:13 46:20, 22 48:4 72:24 73:3,21 74:14 77:25 92:17	403.9 63:1
11 48:10 73:3	207 47:17	41 47:24
110 48:14	20th 32:13 88:8	42 47:16
11th 57:24	22 48:10,13,20	43 51:21
12 26:25 27:8 48:16,18,19 53:16 82:5,9	223 27:8	438 47:11
120 47:24	22nd 55:13	45 78:1,2
1200 79:19	24-hour 5:9	45-day 73:22 78:9
127 27:3	24/7 91:9	450 30:12,14
13 4:2,6 13:19 47:21 65:7	26 27:4	48 54:24
130 48:15	27 47:21 80:11	48228 73:7
13th 55:13 56:4	28 51:6 52:11,16 53:18,22	49 47:20 52:8
14 43:1	<hr/> 3 <hr/>	<hr/> 5 <hr/>
15 73:3	3 5:18 8:14,17 14:25 16:1 42:18,20 43:17,23 62:13 77:23 79:19 80:11	5 8:19 29:21 59:21 60:5 62:5, 25 95:20
16 91:5	30 15:13 28:2,3 48:1 57:3 91:9	50 29:19 53:22 68:9,16 89:10
161 47:7	31 48:7	500 30:14 57:12
17 89:14	313 596-1830 5:5	53 15:16
171 27:2	313 596-2482 5:11	547 48:21
18 17:19 55:15	313 596-2499 5:10	55-2 74:7
180 47:15		577 48:7
1865 56:6		

582 47:6
59 53:17
5th 13:3,5 42:16 49:21,23,25
50:11,18 51:3 52:7 54:21
55:1,3 66:17

6

6 8:19 14:2 79:20
6,000 29:21
61 48:16
62 47:20
650 30:12
68 56:15

7

7 8:22,24 14:23 28:11
7-803 93:4
7-804 93:4
743 47:8
75 39:13

8

80 15:14
803 14:23
81 47:24
8th 33:8

9

9 5:22 6:6 36:22 47:25
9000 27:13
91 47:20
97 47:4
9th 54:13

A

abandoned 40:12
abide 68:10
abiding 68:20 69:13
absence 8:20 48:12
absent 8:19 16:13 45:15
absolutely 39:23 46:12
AC 49:4
academy 22:10 61:12
access 6:18 30:6
Accessing 5:1
accord 19:6
account 4:14
accountability 14:15 65:22
84:19,25 85:7 91:24 92:11
93:10
accountable 83:11 85:12
accurate 21:25
acknowledge 6:14 22:5 49:4,
24 66:16
acknowledged 6:8 67:3
ACLU 92:5
act 20:15 70:5
action 20:22 78:13
active 32:17
actively 22:20
activists 92:3
activities 46:21
activity 27:17
addition 14:8 42:15 76:15
additional 44:2 64:19
Additionally 4:18
additions 82:10
address 4:18,19 5:16 27:12,13

29:2 31:3 37:22 39:23 41:23
45:25 46:11 60:23

adhere 4:23,25 68:23
adherence 5:2 63:7
adjourn 95:9,11
adjourned 95:18
administration 5:4 69:3 70:10
94:22
Administrative 11:21
admitting 72:6
adults 87:17
advance 45:12
advantage 22:13
advertise 86:12
advise 33:11
advised 68:6
advocates 52:3
affairs 15:5 28:22 32:12,23
afternoon 4:5 6:24 8:3,15 9:2,
5,8 13:1,8 14:9 36:19 45:20
50:6,25 72:12 80:19 81:11
85:16 87:1 91:22
AG 92:15
age 10:17 17:2
agencies 65:17,23 86:16
agency 15:4
agenda 5:20 13:15,19 61:25
71:16
Agent 49:22
aggravated 51:18,19,21
aggravating 87:5
aggressively 22:16
agility 47:23
agitators 91:2
agree 94:18
agreed 37:2 81:20

ahead 13:16 24:19 37:24
54:19 69:24
air 38:21
Akbar 11:25
Alabama 16:21
Alameda 84:3
Alarm 30:4,7
alcohol 89:24
alive 56:14
allegations 15:3
allowed 16:23 52:24
Amazon 79:22
Amen 7:22,23 11:2,3
Amendment 56:4
American 15:12 84:1
Americans 15:14
analysis 74:23
Analyzing 64:24
Anderson 7:4 9:24 10:2,8
11:5,6,24
anger 56:9,20,21
Annie 8:4 45:23
announce 79:18
announcement 71:4,7 79:15
answering 58:17
answers 37:7
Anthony 12:1 24:10 26:18
82:23
Antonio 62:18
anybody's 39:2
apartment 89:18
apathy 87:3
apologize 10:4,5 31:23
apologized 23:7
appeared 47:20,24

appears 34:18 35:8
applicants 47:10
application 47:13 73:10
appointed 18:2 20:1
appointment 20:18
appreciative 91:17
apprehension 51:24
appropriately 4:24
approval 13:14,18 14:2 63:5
approve 23:23
approximately 29:17 32:8
76:10
area 23:3 27:21 39:7,18 54:17
73:6 79:25
areas 22:14 52:18 54:1
arises 87:11
arraignment 54:9
arrest 14:21 26:19
arrested 87:17
arrests 27:2,4,9 90:22
arrived 92:22
article 14:23 34:15 62:18
Ashley 25:1 82:22 84:13,15
assault 51:18,22
assaults 51:19
assigned 26:11
assist 53:7
assistant 11:22 12:7 33:23
42:9 71:12
assistants 48:8,10
assisting 26:18
Association 13:7
assume 23:17
assure 54:9
at-large 8:4 9:3 18:2 19:25

20:2
Atard 25:3
ATF 54:6
atmosphere 85:4 95:2
attend 67:2 88:16
attendance 11:19 12:4,12
26:2 67:12
attended 55:2
attendees 4:10,12,13,16 7:6
attending 61:6 64:15
attention 32:5,8 39:18,21
79:15
attorney 11:19 17:5 70:18,22
72:6,9,11,12,14,18,20,21
75:12,21 77:11,22 78:4 92:4,
13
Attorneys 92:7
attrition 48:9,11
audience 80:14
audio 75:11 90:4
auditing 14:19
August 4:2,6 13:19 14:2 46:20
55:13 80:10,11
Austin 84:3
authority 40:20,23 41:8 70:5
authorized 73:15 74:5 75:24
76:1 78:11
average 29:14,21
averaging 42:24,25
awaiting 47:17
award 76:7
awarded 82:17
aware 28:9 79:8,10
awesome 17:24 90:13

B

baby 87:6
back 18:21 28:6 35:12 37:7,22
38:4 39:14,15 44:3 55:9,24
56:1,6 58:24 79:11 81:3 86:3,
7,19 89:13,18
background 6:20 23:16
balance 15:11 93:24
ball 22:17
ban 84:9 86:2,21 87:23 88:4,5
banned 84:2
Baptist 27:14
barking 58:19
based 63:8,12 64:20 76:8
basically 34:3 45:17 72:25
73:12 75:6
basis 59:17
batons 83:18
Bayso 24:10
BC 41:1,7
beanbag 83:19
beat 82:1 83:17
beautiful 17:21
bed 54:4 77:6
begging 56:23 85:21
beginning 17:19 54:23 57:5
64:16
behalf 26:7 42:15
behavior 53:8
behinds 91:10
believes 32:22,23
Bell 6:22,23 7:1,5,7,23 8:3,5,9,
13,18,25 9:4,7,11,14,17,21
10:1,7 11:4,7,10,11 12:6,10,
14,22 13:9,12,16,22 14:1,7,12
16:6 19:8,11,17,24 20:4

21:17,23 22:23 23:1,11 24:12,
16,19,22 25:8,11,17,22,24
27:22 29:3,10 30:15,25 31:4,
17,24 33:13,17,20,25 34:11
35:19 36:16 37:8,13,14,16
38:11,12 40:2,16 42:2 43:13
44:5,8,24 45:1,4,10 48:24
49:3,9,20 54:23 57:18,20 60:9
61:2,14,17,23 64:1,4,9,12,13
66:12,21,22 67:1,10,14,16,19
68:2,14 69:2,7,11,17,24 70:3,
12,19,23 71:3,6,14,18,22
72:1,5,10,13,16,19 75:12,17
76:21 77:1,9,12,18 78:12,15,
19 79:4,9,13,17 80:3,7,9,17,
24 81:6,10 84:12 85:13 86:25
87:23 88:22,24 90:9,11 91:19
93:12,13,15 94:14 95:4,7,13,
17
belonged 73:7
Bend 50:14
benefit 56:13
Berkeley 84:3
berm 59:10
Berno 49:22
Bettison 17:11,13
bias 14:20 62:7,9,11
biased 50:3
Bill 28:23
bills 89:4
birdseye 56:16
bit 41:10,21
bite 26:21
black 55:21 82:15 84:7 87:8,
14,16 92:7,8
bless 7:14 10:19 60:7
blight 40:12 41:7
block 89:20,22
Blossom 6:13 11:20 17:6
80:16,17,19,24

Blount 80:23 81:7,8,9,11,12
board 4:7 5:3,17 6:24 11:8,13,
18 14:10,12,24 15:9,17 16:2,
7,9 17:3,10,17 18:21,24 20:9,
15,21 21:9 23:23 38:21 43:10
45:20,21 46:2 50:6,7 57:16
61:21,24 66:9,20,25 67:23,24
70:9,17,22 71:9,13,24 72:6
73:2 75:15 76:2,15,16,19
77:25 79:6,11 81:9 83:8,22,24
84:10 87:5,18 88:19 90:5
92:10,12,18 93:2,14
Board's 4:23 5:11,16 6:16
11:16 63:4 71:9 73:21 78:8
87:3
BOC 68:21
bodies 82:16
body 23:20 72:22 95:8
body-worn 81:23
bodycam 92:22
bond-zone 54:10
book 16:23 73:4
BOPC 15:17 75:6,9,11 87:22
Bopc@detroitmi.gov. 5:6
bothered 83:11 88:16
bottom 90:15
BP 12:15
Brady-giglio 82:8
Brandon 49:12
break 43:25 51:2
breakdown 43:17,19,20
breaks 43:6,7
Brethem 12:20
Brian 13:1
bridging 94:5
briefly 16:8
bright 50:10
bring 33:1 35:12 37:5 71:19

86:11 87:24
bringing 79:14
broad 93:3
broadly 65:2
Brooklyn 84:4
Brooks 16:12 22:18 23:4
brought 18:8 32:8 86:5
brown 8:7,8 17:5 32:2 33:5
37:5 40:1,3 41:25 59:6 67:7,8,
14,15 77:17,19 78:2 80:14
87:16
brutality 82:3 84:17,20
Bryant 12:9,11,13,17 21:19
26:7,8 27:23 29:4 30:24 31:1,
6 34:5,10,24 35:11 36:19
37:15,17 38:23 39:12,19 40:3
41:13 42:21 43:19,25 46:16
buck 87:18 89:1
budgetary 70:8
building 40:25 67:22 89:18
bullets 88:6
Burch 8:15,16 13:20 16:1,5
18:25 19:1,2,12,16,22 20:7
25:15 33:19,21 36:17,18
37:20 38:10,13 39:5,25 44:25
45:2,9 49:8,10,15 57:19,21,23
58:1,3,8 59:1,5,15,18,23 60:1,
6,7 71:1,5 79:15,16,18 80:5,8
burden 87:21
bureau 31:14 46:19
Burgholtz 25:1
burglaries 52:9
Burke 88:15
Burton 22:2 25:21 42:4,7 43:8,
16,22 44:4,15 69:22,25 70:7,
12,17,21 86:6 87:22
Burton's 86:20
business 7:24 66:15 67:17
69:20,21,23 70:24 71:2,15
78:18,21 95:8

businesses 82:25
busses 79:24
busted 91:10
button 30:1
Bylaws 4:23 6:16
bystander's 82:1

C

call 6:25 10:13 19:1,3 25:17
40:16 46:4 58:24 60:21 66:18
67:2 80:20,25 87:13 88:7 93:8
called 16:23 40:10 42:8,10
79:22 94:23 95:2
calling 88:4,12
calls 41:2 42:18,24,25 43:3,6,
18,24 58:19 85:6
Calming 66:1
Cambridge 84:4
camera 18:8 29:23 81:23
89:19
cameras 30:3 89:22
candid 55:23
candidates 22:5 23:14 24:21
capacity 33:7 36:3
captain 12:20,21 29:1 31:11,
12 49:22 50:24,25 60:11
61:10,13,16 71:20,23 72:1,3,9
74:17,20 75:13,15,18 78:7,14
captains 41:16
car 36:24 73:8 84:25
care 36:20 37:4
career 58:7
careful 40:21
carry 20:16 54:7
cars 89:16
Carter 8:19

case 74:20 81:25
cases 14:19 15:5 51:11,15,22
casting 54:11
category 52:8 53:13
Catherine 25:6
Catholic 81:13
caught 37:9
cc'd 92:11
CCW 90:21
Cease 52:22
cell 6:19 75:20
Census 65:12
center 79:22,24
Centers 63:8
chain 32:24
chair 6:3 7:1 8:2 12:18 13:18
14:12 16:5 20:3 21:17 22:25
23:20,22 24:3 26:9 29:13
30:24 32:1 33:16,19 34:5,24
35:12,24 36:19 37:15 38:23
39:19 40:1 41:13 42:21 43:11
44:12,25 49:8 50:8 54:23
57:19 60:8 66:17 67:18 72:8
76:25 77:17 95:5,8
chair's 6:13
Chairman 40:16 69:22 70:7
78:17,20 80:20 90:5 91:20
93:6,13,15 94:14
Chairman's 67:11
Chairperson 6:22,23 7:5,7,23
8:5,9,13,18,25 9:4,7,11,12,14,
17,19,21 10:1,7 11:4,7,10,11
12:6,10,14,22 13:9,12,16,22
14:1,7 19:11,17,24 21:23
22:23 23:1,11 24:12,16,19,22
25:8,11,17,22,24 27:22 29:3,
10 30:15,25 31:4,17,24 33:13,
17,20,25 34:11 35:19 36:16
37:14,16 38:12 40:2 42:2
43:13 44:5,8,24 45:1,4,10
48:24 49:3,9,20 57:18,20 60:9

61:2,14,17,23 64:1,4,9,12,13
66:12,21,22 67:1,10,14,16,19
68:2,14 69:2,7,11,17,24 70:3,
12,19,23 71:3,6,14,18,22
72:1,5,10,13,16,19 75:12,17
76:21 77:1,9,12,18 78:12,15,
19 79:4,9,13,17 80:3,7,9,17,
24 81:6,10 84:12 85:13 86:25
88:22,24 90:9,11 91:19 93:12
95:4,7,13,17

challenge 70:14

Chalmers 50:13

Chancellor 32:3

change 51:12 52:14

chaplain 7:3,4 9:19 10:8 11:4,
6

CHAPLIN 9:24 10:2

Chapter 15:1

charge 35:2 70:8,10

Charter 14:23 93:2,5

check 27:17 77:15 81:4

checked 27:16 40:11

checks 54:4

Chesser 25:1

chief 5:8 11:25 12:7,8,11,13,
17,19,23 15:8 16:7 26:6,7,8
27:23 29:4 30:24 31:1,6,12,13
33:1,11,15,22,23,25 34:1,5,6,
10,24 35:11 37:15,17 38:23,
24 39:4,19 41:13 42:3,9,21
43:19,25 44:3 46:16 62:5,13
82:13 92:24 94:10

Chief's 34:17 36:6

chiefs 33:23

child 38:20

children 87:16

chime 40:17 50:24

chivalry 17:3

Christian 25:7

Christopher 12:19

Church 27:14 81:13

church's 83:10

Cindy 88:19

circumstances 76:17 92:19

citations 27:3 39:22

cities 84:1 91:14

citizen 62:20 90:17 93:17

citizens 7:14 37:2,5 50:11
55:5,9 56:10 57:13,15 59:8,13
83:12 84:7,24 91:4,11

city 4:17 7:14 9:9 10:21,23
14:23 16:3 17:15 19:7,9 35:18
42:18 46:9 50:2 51:9 52:17
56:3 67:20 70:8 73:6 74:6,7
75:1 79:2 84:6 86:13 89:3
90:17 93:2,5

city's 29:24

civil 14:17

civilian 14:16 47:6 65:8 66:2

civilians 48:7,10

class 48:1,3

clean 83:10

clear 83:23

Clearview 30:6

clock 35:15

close 21:3 32:21 51:24

closed 77:14

cloud 29:23

coalition 91:23,25 92:2,10,21

coaster 17:8

Code 74:7

Coleman 67:22

Coles 11:23 45:13,18,19,20,22
46:17,18 48:25 49:2,7,11,12,
13,14,18

collaboration 41:23

colleagues 16:6 20:9 21:18
88:2,3

collectively 20:20 21:11

collision 70:25 71:15 72:23
73:14,20

Combs 23:5

Comcast 29:16,19 30:3

comfortable 53:2

command 32:18,25

commander 12:20 31:8,9
36:21 49:21,25 50:4,5,6,8,9,
15 54:19,22 57:18,22,25 58:3,
6,15 59:2,4,14,17,22,25 60:4,
6,10,15,18,22 61:1,4,10 67:3
94:4,7

commanders 41:16

commanding 51:25

commend 17:15 94:3,7

comment 4:11 6:8 23:2,8 90:7
93:7,16 95:3

commentaries 85:20

commenters 6:11

comments 5:13,15,19,23 6:10
19:13 20:6

commission 14:13 15:9 18:7
42:14 57:22 79:2

commissioner 7:8,9,24 8:2,7,
11,15,16,19,23 9:2,3,5,6,8
13:20,21,24,25 14:4,5,6,24
15:25 16:4,5,12,16 18:10,23
19:2,12,16,22 20:3,6 21:24
22:2,5,9,25 23:2,4,6,22,25
24:1,3,11,13,15,16,25 25:14,
15,16,20,21 30:19 32:2 33:5,
16,17,18,19,20,21,22 34:1,8,
12,13 35:5,16,25 36:13,17,18,
23 37:5,19 38:10,13 39:5,25
40:1,3 41:25 42:3,7 43:8,16,
22 44:4,15,25 45:2,9 49:1,8,
10,15 55:2 57:19,21 58:1,8
59:1,5,6,18,23 60:1,7,8,9,10,
16,20,24 61:3,7 64:2,3,7,8
66:10,19 67:6,7,8,9,13,14,15,

18,19,20 68:12,25 69:5,9,22,
25 70:2,7,12,17,21 71:1,5
76:25 77:2,17,19 78:2,17,20
79:5,14,15,16,18 80:5,8 86:6,
20 87:22 88:1,9 94:13,15,19
95:10,12

Commissioner's 4:7 5:3

Commissioner-at-large 9:1

commissioners 5:17 7:25
14:11 15:17,21 16:3,9,18
17:4,21 18:3 22:12,18 23:14
44:12,14,17,23 45:7 48:24
64:1 70:9 84:6 85:25 86:22
92:12,18 93:3,14 95:16

committed 74:12

common 20:19 21:14,15,16
88:2,10

communicating 18:4 65:14

communication 80:13

communications 5:19 30:8
65:15

communities 20:17,20,25

community 11:20 13:4,5
15:18 17:23 18:21 19:14 21:5,
7,16 23:9 37:1 38:8 50:1,12
54:20 55:3,4 57:5,13 58:17
60:13 65:6,10,11,14 66:19
69:18 86:19 87:12,13 89:5,7,8
94:6

community-based 54:14,16

companies 74:25

company 74:8,9 76:14,18
77:4,24 78:7

compared 51:6

complaint 5:7,10 15:1 37:18

complaints 5:9 15:7 58:18

complete 6:4 32:24 35:21 62:2

completed 35:23 53:9 63:21

complex 32:15

compliance 68:19

complicit 84:8

complying 68:4

composed 91:25 92:3

computer 4:14 6:5 31:23 73:5
75:19

Conant 39:8

concentrating 53:20

concept 65:1

concern 15:24 23:18 27:13
28:14 35:12

concerned 44:8 51:11 52:6,14
53:15 54:19 62:20 82:5 87:6
94:13,17

concerns 27:20 28:8 39:23
45:25 51:16

conclude 48:22

concluded 95:20

concludes 12:5 57:16

conclusion 92:23

conclusions 32:9,11

conduct 51:10,11,15 52:18
74:9,12,15 75:9 93:3

conducted 75:10

conducting 74:23

cone 26:13

Coney 89:15 90:2

conference 64:16,17 79:21
92:7

confidence 15:10,12,15 54:24
81:16

confiscated 27:3

conflict 78:25 79:1,3

confronted 56:19

congratulate 25:25

connect 21:13

Connor 31:11

consent 86:15

consisted 63:22 64:23 65:11,
18,25 66:4

consistent 51:13 52:17

consists 6:11 62:25

constantly 57:6

Constitution 56:5

construction 39:10

consult 38:24

contact 5:3,8 15:24 45:4,5,7
46:5 54:12 58:25 72:9 74:2

contacted 23:18 74:25

contained 63:20

continue 27:17 28:17 52:3
54:3,7 57:13 95:1

continued 45:17 50:19 74:18

continuing 54:6 84:8

continuous 48:13

continuously 21:21

Contractor 30:9

contradicts 92:23

control 63:8 89:2

controlled 86:15

controls 6:5

convene 54:15 76:19

Convention 32:7

conversation 38:2,6,9 39:3
55:9

conversations 55:23 59:16

cooperate 77:8

cooperation 66:10

coordinate 44:6 45:6,8

coordinating 44:19 49:6

Coordinator 11:21

cops 87:13

copy 15:21 23:19
core 65:15
corner 89:17
Cornerstone 50:13
Corporal 24:4 94:24
correct 13:13 69:8 71:24
corrections 14:8
correspondence 62:2,3,5,17,
20
corroborating 32:15,20
cost 82:25
Coster 29:1
costs 29:1,15 30:2
Council 13:2,4,6 67:21 70:8
89:3
count 78:5
country 21:10 54:25
County 32:7 44:19 74:14,19
76:6 82:7 92:6
couple 22:18 26:9 34:13 37:19
45:16 50:11 69:14 72:24,25
73:2 89:16
courage 86:23
court 11:17
cover 17:14
covers 63:14
COVID 27:25 28:1 50:17 55:17
57:2,3,7 68:10 91:8
COVID-19 63:1,5,12,16,19,24
91:2 93:24
crack 89:23,24
Craig 16:7 26:7 34:6 62:6,14
82:13 92:24
creates 85:3
crew 69:3
crime 26:24 31:10,11,12,14
51:1,3 53:14 54:14,16,18

58:12
crimes 26:25 27:1 52:6,12
criminal 51:10,11,14 74:9,12,
15,20 76:4
criminality 15:3 44:21
criminals 86:8,17,19
Crisis 66:1
Cromwell 12:1 59:3
Crux 84:4
current 47:1 93:5
curriculum 62:8,12
curving 53:8
custom 52:22 54:2
cut 89:12

D

D'LAYNE 11:22
Damon 18:13 19:18
Dana 92:14
dangerous 69:10
Darr 88:19,21,23,25
Darryl 8:8
data 30:7 86:16,17
date 4:6 28:10 51:7,20 53:21,
22 68:1 78:5
Davis 8:23,24 13:25 14:6
25:20 29:13 33:18,21 34:12,
13 35:5,16 36:13,23 67:18,19,
20 68:12,25 69:5,9 70:2
Davis's 35:25
day 7:10 10:10 56:19 57:14
78:1 81:18 90:14 91:5
days 21:12 28:5 53:18,23,24
73:2 78:2 89:16 90:3 92:10
DC 17:11 21:19 36:19 39:12
40:3 41:16

DCW 27:4
deadline 90:7 91:21
deadly 14:21
deal 15:15 37:23
dealing 35:14
dear 19:13
death 89:15 93:1
Deborah 88:15
deceased 18:12,16
decide 93:20
decision 73:22 75:7
decisions 10:21 93:19
deemed 6:2
Defenders 92:6
Deficiencies 66:5
definitions 63:15
definitively 36:6
defund 34:7
defunding 82:13
Delane 71:11
delay 50:21
deliver 21:15
delivered 92:13
Dellicolli 82:23,24
demand 82:12 86:1,5
demands 34:2,4,6,7 83:22
democracy 87:4
denied 76:7
deny 74:14
department 10:23 11:15 15:2,
6 19:7 36:4,9 40:5 41:9 43:23
47:2 50:2 55:25 56:6 63:1,3,7,
10,12 68:5 70:11 74:18,25
75:5 78:24 85:3 90:15 92:2,17
department's 62:7 63:24
75:21

departments 10:22 81:17
depending 29:21
deployment 34:22
depressing 86:4
deputy 12:7,8,11,13,17,19,22
26:6,8 27:23 29:4 30:24 31:1,
6,12,13 33:14,25 34:1,5,10,24
35:11 37:15,17 38:23,24 39:3,
19 41:13 42:3,9,21 43:19,25
46:16 94:9
Dequindre 39:8,11
Derrick 18:17
deserve 85:21 89:25
designed 55:4
detail 27:6
detailed 46:23
details 23:17 32:14
detective 23:14,16,24 26:1
31:13 62:15
detectives 48:18 54:9
determination 76:9
Detroit 4:1,7,17 7:14 9:10
14:10,14 15:6,9,19 16:3 17:11
19:7 29:25 42:19 43:22 48:5,6
49:23 50:2 55:25 56:3,6 61:15
68:5 70:9,10 73:6 74:24 75:1,
5 81:13,18 82:24 83:12 84:17,
24 85:17,25 87:2,14 90:14,18
91:11,14 92:2,5,16,24 93:2,23
Detroiter 81:14
Detroiters 82:15 92:1 93:9
Detroitmi.gov/bopc. 5:12
developing 66:11
device 6:7
Dewaelsche 16:12 22:19
dial 5:4 6:6
dialogue 46:8
difference 18:1

difficult 91:13
difficulties 30:23
dignity 85:22
diligence 20:22
dinners 17:22
Dire 25:5
direct 34:25
direction 7:16 10:24
directive 63:1,3,6,9,24,25
directly 7:19
director 11:24 12:18,19 28:24
29:4,7 30:17 31:18,21 32:1
33:13 35:1,24 36:15 42:22
44:9,11 45:2,5,14,15 81:20
disabled 26:14 48:16
disbursed 57:12
discernment 10:21
discipline 82:4,6
discount 29:20
discretion 6:13
discussed 62:16
Discussing 65:20
discussion 25:12 64:5 95:14
Disease 63:8
dismissal 5:1 6:3
dispatch 74:2
displaying 53:9
displays 19:20
disproportionate 73:24
dispute 58:20
disqualified 47:15,16
distinct 50:9
distribution 79:22
district 7:1 8:5,9,13,17,18,19,
22,24 14:13 16:1,16,18 18:22
19:4 20:17 42:16 79:19

divide 15:11
Documentary 56:4
documentation 70:13 71:23
documents 46:22 87:25
dog 58:19
domestic 51:22,23 52:1
donut 37:8
door 54:11 57:22 58:11,13,15,
21
doors 37:19
double 81:3
downtown 28:6,9,13,16,20
DPD 16:7 21:19 42:11 62:12
68:5,19 73:24 81:22 82:8
83:8,14,16 85:1 86:11,16,18
88:6 92:22
DPD's 70:1
draft 51:2
drag 27:6 40:6 87:7
dragnet 86:7
Draper 24:5
dressed 83:17
drink 89:24
Driven 16:24
driver 74:16 76:5
driver's 73:11
driving 39:15 73:8
drop 48:21 61:8
dropped 22:17
drugs 89:23
DSA 82:24 85:17 86:1 87:2
Duane 81:25 85:8
due 8:21 55:16 74:16 93:10
Duggan 18:15 79:21 82:13
duly 19:25 77:16

duties 14:24
duty 33:1,6,7,11 48:12
Dwyer 85:15 87:1,2

E

e-mail 4:15,18,19 5:5,16 92:12
earlier 62:16 81:3
east 14:13 17:13 36:20 49:22
84:5
Easton 50:12
echo 20:5 75:20
Edward 25:1 73:4
Effect 65:19
effective 65:9,15
effectively 65:14
efforts 51:24
elaborate 79:4
Elaine 12:8
elected 12:23 18:2
election 20:19
Electrical 30:9
elements 65:15
email 60:23
Emancipation 56:1
emergencies 62:23,24
emergency 35:8,18
emotionally 91:6
emphasizing 65:7
employee 74:11 76:14,16
employees 47:2 73:17 74:10
75:3
employer 73:3
employment 28:23 47:1
enable 54:15
encounter 65:4

encounters 55:7
encourage 21:10 93:8
end 10:17 30:21 70:1 86:1,21
88:6 89:20,22
endangerment 38:20
ended 36:2 55:23 56:12 83:3
ends 56:18
enforcement 15:4 27:10,15
39:20 41:17 52:18 53:25 54:6,
25 55:5,21 57:15 59:7 65:16
engage 21:5
engaged 50:10,16
engagement 65:7,12,16
engineers 18:17
enjoining 16:22
enjoy 50:14
enlightened 22:11
enlightening 22:7
ensure 52:3 82:17
enterprising 50:12
entertain 13:18 23:20 48:23
95:9
entire 16:7 21:19 44:16
entitled 62:18 66:4
equates 51:8
equipment 88:7
equipped 42:22
era 59:24
Eric 12:20,21 80:22 81:12
Erin 85:15 87:2
escapes 77:20
essentially 86:12
establish 61:8
Estebon 26:17
Eternal 7:9

Eugene 26:11
evening 95:19
event 94:2
Evergreen 73:6
Evette 8:12 88:15
evidence 65:19 73:14 74:16
75:23 76:8
Ewing 12:20 49:21,25 50:4,6,8
54:22 57:25 58:3,15 59:4,14,
22,25 60:4,6,11,15,18,22
61:1,4 67:3 94:4,7
exact 78:5
examples 81:19
excellent 49:17 58:10
excessive 14:21
exciting 16:10
excludes 29:18
excuse 24:18 92:6,8
excused 8:20
exhausted 87:3 91:6
expectations 63:11
experience 16:9 17:8
experienced 16:18 17:20
experiencing 63:18
explained 38:1 65:1
extend 21:12
extent 65:2
extraordinarily 46:12
extremely 28:14 35:13

F

faces 57:9
facial 70:1 84:2,22 86:2,7,21
87:19 94:16
facilities 57:10
fact 39:16 83:21

facts 74:3
failed 47:21,25 74:1
Failure 4:25
Fairgrounds 79:23
fairly 65:3
fairness 59:12
faith 85:1,2,9,11
falls 31:10,14
falsely 87:17
families 53:4 91:4
family 16:22 88:12 94:25
fashioned 18:8
fast 35:14
Father 10:8,12,14,15,18,23
favor 13:23 14:3 25:13 64:6
95:15
favor 23:7
fax 5:10
feasible 76:23
federal 86:16
feedback 15:19
feel 53:2 55:9 86:14
fell 15:13
fellow 20:6 85:19 93:8
felony 27:2,8
fenced 38:19
Fielder 26:11
fighting 10:5
figure 89:21
figured 89:21
figuring 29:9
fill 25:8
filled 47:3,7
filling 45:13

final 63:4 76:9
finalizing 32:21
find 21:14,15 73:9,10
finding 88:2,10
findings 36:11
fine 4:20
finished 24:23
fire 34:6 52:22
firing 82:12
fishing 86:18
Floyd 94:2
FMLA 48:13
focuses 65:2
folks 21:5
follow 36:23 37:6,13 38:21
39:1 63:12 69:17,19 77:15
force 14:21,22 66:1,2
forefront 14:18
forever 7:21
forgot 66:16 67:4
form 6:5 14:17
format 68:20
forthcoming 35:9 64:20
forum 4:22,24 5:14 55:3,4
56:11
forums 6:18
forward 13:10 15:2 21:20 26:3
27:18 77:5 86:5,23 88:17
found 27:17 32:11
Fourth 26:17
framed 18:9
Francisco 84:3
frank 46:8
frankly 77:6 87:3 89:25
fraud 74:8,12

free 15:9 41:3,11 70:15
friday 28:11 61:19
front 38:18 89:12
full 33:6 44:18 62:11 88:13
fully 68:13,15
future 7:12 21:1 56:24 61:18

G

gang 52:21 54:4
gap 94:5
gas 83:18 88:5
gave 18:10
gear 83:17
geared 58:17
general 76:18 92:14
Generally 33:4
generation 21:1
gentleman 17:14
George 90:8 93:11,13 94:2
get all 19:2
Gilbert 24:8
Gilhood 32:4 33:2
give 7:15,21 9:21 10:9,20,23,
25 26:10 37:3 43:8 56:8,13,16
57:8 58:16 59:8 64:17 67:4
81:18
glad 60:3 61:14
glasses 13:17
glory 7:21 10:9,24,25
God 7:9,15 10:3 60:7
Golyum 25:6
Gonzales 23:3,7
good 4:5 6:24 8:3,15 9:2,5,8
14:9 16:2 36:19 40:7 41:14
45:20 50:6,25 72:12 79:25
80:19 81:11 85:16 87:1 88:25

91:22
goodness 10:2
gosh 58:9
graduated 57:9
graduates 57:9
graduating 48:1
graduation 57:11
graduations 17:17
grant 54:14
grateful 7:10
Graveline 12:19 28:24 29:7
30:18 31:21 32:1 33:14 35:1,
24 36:15 42:22 44:11 45:3
81:20
gravity 75:25
great 15:15 50:19,22 57:4 80:3
95:19
Greektown 28:13 37:9
Green 28:25 29:25 30:13
42:19 56:7 83:1,3 86:1,9,12,
22 87:10,19,23 88:5 89:1
Gregory 17:4
Griffie 8:11,12 67:6,9,13 76:25
77:2 88:16 94:13,15
Griffie's 88:15
ground 20:19 21:14
groups 50:12 57:5 92:3,4
growing 15:11 81:17
Guardian 30:4,7
guess 71:22 78:5 81:7
guests 7:15 13:1
Guide 7:20
guidelines 20:24 63:9 69:12,
13,18,19
Guild 92:5
guilty 61:6 86:18

guns 27:4 40:8 53:20,21,22,24
54:7,8

guy 90:1

guys 28:9 42:8

H

Ha 38:24 39:4

Hakeem 88:11,14 92:16,20

Hampton 84:5

hand 5:21 6:6 41:18 69:23
76:13

handguns 27:4

handle 37:24

handled 15:5,7

hangers 54:11

hanging 11:5

happen 45:3 85:5

happened 37:8,11 56:15

happening 54:10 56:18

happiness 82:18

happy 18:9,20 46:13

harassment 59:6

hard 23:19 40:5 90:21

harm 55:7

he'll 82:21

head 26:21

health 62:19,22,24 63:13 83:7

hear 9:25 19:15 24:13 29:5
44:10 45:18 60:3 67:7 71:22
72:14,16 75:15 76:16 80:1
81:9 85:23 88:21,23,24 90:10
93:11,22

heard 19:16 89:6 90:24 94:16

hearing 72:23,25 75:7,9,10
76:3,15,19,22 77:5,10,13
78:16

heart 19:13 21:3 81:13

heavy 28:14

held 57:11 66:3

helpful 36:14

Henderson 13:3 66:17 80:14,
25 81:1,5

Hernandez 9:5,6 14:5 20:1,3
21:24 25:16 30:19 64:7 88:1,9

hey 53:5

Hicks 17:4

hide 46:12

highest 51:8

highlight 55:14 62:1 64:22

highlighting 65:13

hired 47:12

hires 48:2,4

hiring 46:24

historic 19:18

history 16:21 55:24 56:1

hold 57:1 76:3 83:11 85:11

Holley 7:8,9,24 9:8,9 13:21
16:20 24:15,17 33:16,17,20,
22 34:1,8,12 64:3,8 78:17,20
79:5,14 95:12

Holt 8:2,4 13:24 14:4 22:6,9,
25 23:2,6,22 24:3,11,13,17,25
25:14 45:23 49:1 60:8,9,10,
16,20,24 64:2 66:19 95:10

Holy 7:21

home 17:18 26:15,22 35:17
58:21 73:5,11,12,19 75:4

homeowner 38:3

homicide 54:4

homicides 51:4,8

honest 55:8

honor 10:9,24,25

honorable 16:6 18:12,13 19:3

20:9 71:9,13 72:22
honors 19:2
Hood's 28:23
hope 15:20 22:12 35:20 61:17
77:15 85:9 94:20
hoping 41:21
hospital 82:1
host 6:1
hot 56:11
hour 5:17 42:12
hours 42:11 44:15 62:10
81:24 83:14 91:5
house 37:19 89:12
household 19:21
housing 53:1 83:7
HR 45:11
human 46:19
Humperdale 24:6

I

I-75 39:9,12
I-VIEW 30:8
IC 30:7
icon 5:21
idea 22:10
identify 4:10 36:6
illegal 14:20
images 6:1
immediately 74:7
impact 14:22 20:24 65:20
impacted 32:4
implement 54:16
Implementing 64:23
implicit 62:6,9,11
important 5:23 20:10 21:8

22:14 49:5 63:15 74:13,22
85:7
impressed 17:2
imprisoned 87:9,18
inappropriate 6:2
inaudible 9:15 14:18 26:5
68:11
inception 56:5
incident 42:12 56:7 78:1 83:20
84:23
incidents 85:7
include 60:23 84:22 92:4
included 43:12,15 58:11,13
63:2 65:6 82:10
includes 29:22
including 66:9 92:4
incoming 62:2,3
inconclusive 36:2,12
Incorporated 30:10
increase 51:19,20 52:16 55:4
incredibly 86:4
independent 20:17,18 21:6
92:15,25
indicating 63:17 70:14
indication 83:23
indirectly 7:19
individual 14:19 21:13
individuals 69:4
Infinite 30:4,8
information 5:4 9:20 23:17
28:6 32:16,20 34:23 35:9,20
36:14 40:18 44:2 46:23 48:5
53:3 61:5 63:10,20 94:12
informed 22:11
initially 22:21 76:7
initiative 18:14

injured 26:10,13,20
injuries 26:15,20,21,23
Innovation 11:16
inset 57:3
insist 93:9
installation 29:19
installers 30:5
installment 55:14
instance 59:9,11
instructions 5:13
insufficient 74:16
integrity 20:22 32:7
intelligence 52:22 54:5
Intensive 65:7
interact 21:5 46:15 61:18
interaction 26:4 81:21
interest 47:14 78:25
interested 29:24
interesting 16:10 19:13 89:9
Interim 11:13,25
intermittent 48:13
internal 15:5 28:22 32:12,23
internal-external 15:4
internet 29:18 93:7
interrupt 80:25
interrupting 6:21
interview 36:5,10
interviewing 32:17
introduce 7:25 8:1 11:8 12:7,
14 20:1
introductions 11:15 12:5
investigate 92:19
investigating 14:18
investigation 32:3,5,10,12,13,
14 33:3,10 34:16 35:1 36:1,11

66:5 74:3,24 88:13 92:15
93:1,4
investigations 5:7 28:22
34:19
investigative 33:7
investigator 5:8 11:25 12:1,2,
3 15:8 32:16 59:3 66:9
investigators 32:22
investment 54:17
invitation 60:17
invite 21:11
invited 6:1 67:2
invocation 7:3,8
involve 87:11
involved 30:2 76:5
involvement 65:10
involves 73:1
involving 73:22,23
Island 89:15 90:2
issuance 78:8
issue 27:13 28:24 39:6 68:10
70:25 75:25 76:13 77:6,24
issued 27:2 78:1
issues 14:22 27:20 28:7,21
40:19,25 41:4,12,24 46:11
73:13
item 13:12 14:1 26:6 49:20
64:14 67:17
items 62:1,4
ITG 30:7

J

jail 89:25
James 11:23 25:5 30:8 49:14
62:6,14 92:24
January 47:10

Jefferson 50:13
Jermaine 11:19
Jessica 24:4
Jesus' 7:22 11:1
Jim 9:9
job 40:14 90:20 91:12
jobs 50:19 79:19
Johns 24:4
join 4:13 5:24 8:20,21 67:10
88:12
joined 10:14 22:2 88:4
joining 5:24
joke 83:25
Jones 9:2,3 22:9 23:25 24:1
81:25 85:8 94:24
Jonna 11:21
Judge 19:18
July 38:17 46:21 47:13,19
48:2,3,4,9 55:15 83:13 92:17
jump 29:8 39:16
jumping 13:16
June 72:24 73:21 77:25 78:6
88:8
justice 64:24 65:1 82:21

K

Keith 12:20 18:13 19:18 26:18
50:24
Kelly 25:5
key 20:23 65:22
kiddie 37:25 38:5 83:9
kidnapping 26:19
killing 92:15,20
kind 46:14 55:14,17
kindness 21:3 88:10
knew 16:15 17:12 50:4 57:23

knock 58:20
knocker 58:11,13,15
knockers 58:21
knowledge 10:25
Kronus 30:4
Kyle 59:24

L

lack 47:13 84:19,25 85:1,2
ladies 16:14 94:10,12
lady 94:23
laptop 73:4,7,9,12
larcenies 52:9
largest 84:6
Lasonia 12:2
Lastly 6:9 82:12
late 28:10
laugh 18:7 82:14
laughing 72:19 83:22
launch 92:25
law 15:4 38:15 39:1 54:25
55:5,20 57:14 65:16 78:24
lawn 87:6
Lawrence 11:25
laws 6:17
Lawson 24:7
Lawyer's 92:5
Lawyers 92:8
lead 10:20,21 45:17
leader 90:18
leaders 10:20
leadership 20:12 31:16 65:13
leads 18:19 32:19
learn 18:21,22

learning 16:17,19 18:1,3
lease 29:15,16 30:3
leave 48:12,14,15 68:3
leaves 39:10
led 16:11,14 74:2
Lee 25:5
left 17:7 81:5
legal 11:22 71:11
letter 62:13 71:10 92:13,14
liaison 17:15
liberty 82:18
license 77:21
lieutenant 11:23 13:6 23:5
45:13,18,19,20,22 46:17,18
48:25 49:1,7,11,13,14,18 58:5
88:20 93:21 94:3,8
Lieutenant's 13:7
lieutenants 48:19
life 16:24,25 20:11 41:24
82:18
life-long 81:14
Light 28:25 30:13 42:19 83:1,3
86:2,9,12,22 87:10,19,23 88:5
89:2
lighten 41:9
limit 80:22
lips 30:19
Lisa 16:13
list 6:11 7:6 23:15 24:23 62:3
84:1
listed 12:16 62:2 75:1
listen 21:3
listen-- 80:2
Listene 24:8
listening 42:1 88:10
Littleton 88:14 92:16,20

Littleton's 88:11 93:1
live 21:7 87:14
lived 49:23
lives 73:5 93:23
load 41:9
local 91:25
localistic 83:6
locating 7:5
location 27:15,16,18 35:18
39:21 58:18 73:10
locations 42:19
logging 4:21
Logical 30:9
Logitech 30:9
long 27:4 34:9 35:7,17
longer 16:11 36:4,9
looked 81:2
Lord 7:13 10:19 11:1
lost 75:11 85:9 90:4
lot 15:15 21:4 40:20 41:23
43:2 50:10 53:24 56:11 60:25
83:10,11 93:17 94:18
love 17:17
loved 18:6 53:5,8
low 15:10 81:16
lower 81:17
lowest 15:13
luncheon 17:22
lynching 94:1

M

Mac 73:4
made 93:15
Magical 12:3
main 30:1

Maine 84:5
maintain 73:16
maintaining 65:9
major 31:2,7,9,10 54:5
majority 58:6 87:14
make 4:11 5:20 10:21 22:20
27:19 28:18 38:25 39:1 40:16,
22 44:22 45:3 57:14 61:5 66:7
68:9 75:7 86:13 93:19
makes 86:14
making 41:2 68:7,16,18,23
Malice 56:7
man 37:7,10 73:7,9 89:14
manner 32:6
manpower 35:15 46:24
mantel 22:17
Marcella 11:23
March 32:9,13 73:3
marched 28:12
Marcus 24:5
Mark 9:3 13:6 24:7 88:20 90:6
93:21 94:8
Martha 24:9
masked 4:13
matter 39:16 40:22 72:22
76:3,4,10,11,16,20 77:13
matters 75:24
Mayor 18:15 34:6 79:20
Mcallister 13:2
MDOT 79:23
means 34:8
measures 63:19
Measuring 65:19
medical 48:14
meet 77:14
meeting 4:7,12,22 5:1,14,21,

24,25 6:4,18,21,25 7:16
10:13,18 11:14,17 14:10 22:3
26:2 34:3 36:25 37:1 57:5
80:9,11 81:19 84:18 87:25
88:17 95:20

meetings 4:9 10:4 17:23 57:3,
6 60:14,17 84:18

Megan 84:14 85:14,16,17

Melanie 11:12 17:7 43:9

member 13:2 87:2

members 11:19 18:24 23:24,
25 28:1 32:18 46:25 48:4,6,
10,21 50:18 63:10,12,17,18
78:23 79:6 83:22 88:11 91:8,9

members' 63:7

memory 77:20

men 40:4 50:18 60:2 87:8
90:13 91:10

mental 62:19,21,22,24

mentioned 29:18 57:4 58:11
60:12

mentors 16:11

message 4:9

met 17:2 18:17 61:11 91:21

Methods 65:21

Michael 24:9

Michelle 90:8

Michigan 4:1 92:13

microphone 29:6 30:22 72:4,7

midst 10:12

Mike 82:21 91:20,23

Mildred 59:24

Mile 39:7,8

military 48:15 88:6

mind 10:20

mind's 55:19

minister 81:12

minute 6:12

minutes 6:10 14:2,8 43:1
74:21 89:10

misconduct 14:20

missed 17:21

missing 94:10

mistaken 43:6

mobile 6:7

mobilization 34:22 35:3,7

model 21:9

moment 19:19 91:11

moments 56:11

monitor 28:17

monitoring 11:16

month 15:16,20 29:17 41:20
46:21 47:11,14,19 48:2,11
83:12

monthly 46:20 48:20

months 32:17 45:16 72:24,25
81:24 94:11

Moody 73:4

Morningside 50:13

Mother 18:25

mother's 73:8

motion 13:18 23:20 25:23
64:11 70:4,5,6 86:23 95:9

motions 86:20

motor 52:10

motorists 39:13

move 11:14 13:10 15:25 22:4,
23 23:13,23 38:9 45:10 61:20
66:15,23 69:25 72:8 80:13
81:7 83:4 95:10

moved 13:20,23 25:12 64:2,5
95:14

movement 83:24

moving 30:20 70:23

multi-site 29:20

MULTIPLE 11:3

Municipal 67:22

murder 88:13

murdered 90:2

murdering 87:8

mute 42:5

muted 5:25 42:8

N

NACO 64:14,15,16

naked 82:1

names 25:9 82:5,9

national 81:15 92:5,7

nationality 55:22

nature 55:8 56:16

navigating 20:10

NBAC 54:4

neck 26:14

needed 82:17

needing 86:8

neighbor 58:20

neighbor's 83:9

neighborhood 17:15 59:8
87:11,14,17 92:6

neighbors 21:6 87:15

Nessel 92:14

network 86:10

news 34:15 62:18 79:7,25
80:3,4,6

nice 19:4

Nicole 24:5

no-shows 47:22 48:1

non-fatal 53:12

noncriminal 5:9 15:7

none@none.com 4:20
nonfatal 52:13
nonlethal 83:19
North 84:5
note 4:8 74:22
noted 77:16
noticed 51:17,21
notification 35:22
notifications 52:23 54:2
NPOS 40:9 57:7 58:18
number 5:10 14:25 34:18
36:22 47:12,16 51:12 53:9,23
58:24 59:16,21 60:5 62:9,13,
17,25 66:23 73:24 84:21 92:4
numbers 4:12 27:25 37:3 43:4
47:2 48:9 51:13 52:15
nurse 93:20
nurturing 21:21

O

Oakland 84:3
object 93:8
Observer 62:18
obvious 83:1
occurred 42:12 52:19
OCI 67:25 69:1,2
offenders 51:15 52:2,20 54:2,
7,10
offer 20:7,21 21:13
offered 52:25 53:7
office 5:8 15:8 24:9 44:20
71:10 74:14,19 76:7
officer 24:5,6,7,8,9,10,25
25:1,2,3,4,5,6 26:11,12,17,18
28:23 37:7,8,11 51:25 73:24
74:1,24 93:16,18
Officer-involved 66:6

officers 7:17 17:18 23:10,15
26:10,16 27:15 28:17 35:7,13
37:4,18,22 41:1,3,11 48:18
50:16 55:10,18,21 56:13,23
82:7 83:15,16 85:9,11 92:16
93:23
officers' 82:4,5,9
official 12:23
offline 39:3
open 46:8
open-type 77:10
opened 32:12,13
operating 75:20
operation 73:17
operations 15:2
opportunity 15:22 17:10 18:5
19:9,19 20:4 21:9,18 22:6
45:25 53:4 55:6 56:8 57:8,10
58:23 67:5
opposed 31:22 64:9 95:17
opposition 25:19
oppressed 94:7
option 29:15 30:3,5
options 6:7 29:21
oral 5:19 80:13
order 6:25 7:24 70:4,6,8
ordinance 37:3 38:14
ordinances 6:17 27:3 36:24
38:15
Organized 31:10,11,12,14
outlines 62:8
outlining 63:6,15,22
outreach 65:10
outstanding 50:3
oversight 14:16,17 20:14 21:9
65:8,16,20,23 66:3 70:10
93:10

overt 87:4
overview 62:7 64:18
Owl 30:9
owned 73:9

P

P.M. 4:3 5:18 6:8 28:11 80:11
90:7 91:21 95:20
packet 43:12,15 61:25 63:2,21
paid 89:3
panelists 4:16
paper 34:15
parades 57:12
parked 36:25 59:9 89:17
parking 40:18,19,23 41:6,7,17
59:7 83:10
Parrish 71:21,23 72:2,3,9
74:17,20 75:14,15,18 78:7,14
part 18:20 36:20 65:7,12
participants 5:21,24
participate 82:25
participating 7:18
participation 62:10
partner 50:24 54:3,6
partnering 52:21 54:13
partners 41:15
partnership 21:20,21 54:15
parts 17:14
passed 25:23 47:21,25 64:11
passing 87:18 89:1
past 17:4 28:5 36:25 41:20
Paston 12:21
path 18:18,19
patrons 28:16
pattern 14:19

patterns 51:16
pause 24:12
pay 83:1 86:9 89:3
pay-up-front 29:20
pending 76:4
people 17:2,7,9,12 36:2 39:14
41:1 46:8,9 65:2 82:14,17
85:9 87:8 89:4,5,23 90:24
94:6
perceive 65:3
percent 15:14,16 26:25 27:1
29:19 51:4,6,7,20,21 52:8,9,
10,11,16 53:11,16,17 54:24
68:9,16
percentage 84:7
period 78:10
permanently 47:15
permit 74:8 75:8 76:2
permitting 73:17
person 26:2 34:17 36:8,10
79:1
personal 20:11 73:18 75:3
personnel 11:24 45:14,16
48:17
perspective 55:11
Peterboro 89:15 90:2
petitioning 76:2
Petty 88:18
phone 4:12 31:22 38:2 40:16
75:20
phones 6:20
Phrafee 36:21
physical 47:23
pick 22:16 37:10 41:22 61:9
picture 18:10,11,13,14,16
19:17,20 37:21
pictures 18:6,9 19:15 89:20
90:3

Pierce 25:4
place 57:14 68:21 69:7,14
plan 35:7,20 56:23
plans 68:11
platform 20:4
platforms 5:2
platoons 33:9
play 83:1
playing 10:3
point 39:20 70:7 75:22
Polaroid 19:14
police 4:7 5:3,17 10:22 11:24
13:3,5 14:11,12,24 15:2,6,9,
10,13,17 16:3,9 17:3 19:7
22:10 23:10 24:4,5,6,7,8,9,10,
25 25:1,2,3,4,5,6 26:16,17,18
34:7 37:10 40:22 41:4 42:17
43:23 48:8,10,18 50:2 54:12
55:2,7,25 56:6,10 58:23 62:6,
13,19 64:24 66:10,17 68:5
70:9,11 73:11,15 74:5,24
75:5,24 76:1 78:10 81:16,21
82:2,13 84:6,17,19,25 85:2,9
86:10 87:7 89:2,7,8,16 90:14
91:24 92:2,11,17,18,24 93:3,
9,14,16,18,23
police-citizen 65:4
policies 4:10,24,25 5:2 68:23
policing 14:20,22 15:15,19
55:10 86:7
policy 20:24 63:1,5,14,22,23
82:8
polls 15:10,12
pool 36:24 37:25 38:4,5,18
87:6
pools 83:9
popular 29:15,16
Porotti 26:17
Portland 84:5

position 49:6 75:22
positions 47:3,4,6,7,8
positive 28:1,3 63:17 91:8
post 47:17
posted 6:18
potentially 20:25 75:25
power 87:23 94:14
powers 93:3
PPES 57:12
practices 76:17
praise 7:13,20,22 10:10,24,25
pray 9:23 10:6 94:23
prayer 9:22
praying 94:22
precautions 63:11,13,16
precinct 13:3,5 26:12,17 33:8
43:7 49:21,23 50:1,10,11,15,
18 51:3 52:7,12 54:13,21
55:1,3,22 57:24 60:13 66:17
prejudice 87:9
prepared 44:17
presence 67:3
present 8:8,12 9:6 11:14 13:8
21:20
presentation 50:4 60:11
president 13:4,6
press 5:22 15:10 74:18
Prestige 24:10
pretty 40:7 50:10 79:25
prevent 6:20
prevention 54:16 63:9
previous 15:16
previously 72:24
pricing 30:10,11,14
primarily 68:5

principles 65:8,13
priority 42:17,18,20,24,25
43:17,20,23 44:1
Pritchard 31:8
private 54:12
privilege 50:9
Pro 30:7
proactive 83:5
problem 27:23 31:24 61:1
87:10,12 90:1
procedural 64:24 65:1
procedures 63:7,11,15,17
process 22:8 35:21 47:11
55:18 68:7,18,24 72:5 77:16
93:10
produced 92:21
professional 6:15 20:12 35:2
61:11
professionalism 59:12
professionals 62:22
program 48:21 58:12,14 62:8,
21 88:7
programs 54:20
progress 43:2
prohibit 75:3
Project 29:25 83:1,3 86:1,9,
12,21 87:10,19,23 88:5
prominent 19:20
promote 62:15
promoted 23:16 25:25
promoting 85:8
promotion 22:4 23:14 26:5
promotions 23:23
prompt 4:16
prompted 4:15
proof 37:2 87:21

properly 13:22 20:1 25:12
64:4 95:13
property 27:1 52:6,12 73:18,
19 75:3
Prosecutor 82:7
Prosecutor's 32:7 44:20
74:14,19 76:6
prospective 57:11
protection 14:17
protest 55:20 88:8 93:8
protesters 82:12 83:15,17,23
91:2
protesters' 34:2 81:21
protestor 42:10
protests 26:13 28:4,12 35:14
50:17 55:16
protocol 63:6
protocols 73:16
prove 87:22,24
proven 86:17
provide 91:4
provided 15:1 43:21 46:20,22
64:20
providing 53:2 62:7 63:10
Prudential 30:10
public 5:13,14,18,19,23 6:8,
10,11 15:23 22:15 44:18,22
77:13 81:16,22 83:7,21 88:3,4
publicly 92:22
pulled 53:24
purchase 30:5
purpose 16:24,25 18:4,18
19:5 21:15,16 88:2,10
pursuant 73:21
pursue 52:2
pursuing 54:1
pursuit 82:18

put 31:15 38:4,17 48:3 70:15
77:6 83:23 86:23 89:22 93:23
putting 77:6 82:15

Q

quality 41:24
Quantitative 65:21
quarantined 28:2,3 91:9
quarter 51:5 52:15,16
question 29:13 31:2 33:5
34:25 35:25 40:15 42:9,23
44:9,10 46:10 67:23 74:10
77:20
questions 27:24 28:25 32:2
33:14 42:3 46:1,4 48:23 57:17
65:22 66:13
quick 77:19
quiet 94:20
quorum 9:13

R

race 46:24
racial 15:11
racially 87:9
racing 27:6 40:6 87:7
racist 84:9
radar 27:19
Raise 5:21 6:6
ran 42:10
Randolph 25:3
rank 23:24 26:1 62:15
rapport 61:9
rate 53:16
Re-thinking 62:19
reactionary 83:4
read 16:23 38:16 92:9

reading 13:17
real 89:9
realize 19:5
reason 82:2,5
reasons 82:9,11 83:2
recall 72:23
receive 14:25 60:17 71:10
received 23:15 26:20 35:20
receiving 88:6
recent 55:16
recently 55:16
recognition 70:1 84:2,22 86:2,
7,21 87:19 94:16
recommend 76:19
recommendation 62:14 75:6,
9
recommendations 33:1 62:21
recommended 75:8
record 31:15 81:12
recovered 27:9
recovering 26:15,22
recruiting 22:7,16,20,22 23:3
47:9
recruitment 23:9
Reduce 66:2
reduced 6:12
reduction 51:4,6,8,9 52:8,9,
10,11 53:12,16,17 54:14
refer 61:24 93:4
reference 33:15
referenced 73:20
referring 23:4
reflection 20:8 21:24
reflects 77:23
reform 93:10

refrain 6:15
refusing 84:9
regard 40:18 54:25 56:24
regular 39:14 59:17
reinstated 78:9
reinvests 83:6
reiterate 80:21
rejoined 9:19
related 52:1 63:19
relates 26:24 27:6,24 28:4,21
42:24 47:9
relating 63:24
relations 11:20 13:4,5 37:1
38:8 55:5 60:13 66:17,19
relationship 46:13 51:25
relationships 41:14,16,17
release 44:18 82:7,9 88:8
released 44:22 81:24 83:21
relentlessly 52:2 54:1
relevant 6:17
relocation 53:1
remain 6:14
remains 33:6
remarks 22:21 67:11
remember 6:4 18:11 59:2,10,
13,14 94:1
remembered 84:10
remembering 17:16
reminder 4:22,23
reminders 4:8 5:23
removals 82:10
remove 73:18 83:9
removing 40:8
Renald 25:3
repair 39:9

report 13:13 16:2 31:18 32:21,
23 33:15 35:8 43:4,5,12,21
45:11 46:19,20 48:22 57:16
58:10 63:21 64:18 75:2 77:23
79:11
reported 15:13
reporter 11:17
reporting 50:22 65:19 68:9
reports 64:19
represent 20:18 21:7
representative 12:24
representing 9:9 11:23 13:2,3
90:14 91:23
reprimanded 37:11
request 5:18,20 35:3 63:23
74:15
requested 35:21 92:14
requesting 34:21 63:4 78:13
92:18
required 62:9
requirement 77:14
requires 5:2
rescheduled 47:21,25
rescue 59:11
reside 48:6
residency 48:5
resident 87:2
residents 42:16
resignation 71:11
resolve 87:12
resolved 14:25 40:11 76:12
resources 46:19 53:1 83:7
respect 46:23 94:19
respectful 6:15
respectfully 65:4
respond 35:13 38:11 55:10
70:18,22

responded 37:20
responders 7:17 62:23
responding 62:22,23
response 42:17 45:21 50:7
responsibilities 20:14
responsibility 20:16 94:24
rest 12:16 43:10 52:17
restore 85:10
restricted 48:12,15
resubmitted 76:8
result 4:25 6:3
retire 93:21
retrieve 73:12
return 68:1 76:11
returned 68:13,15
returning 67:21
revealed 82:6
revealing 81:15
Reverend 7:8 9:9 16:20
review 44:20
reviewed 63:5
reviewing 14:19
Rice 24:6
Richards 11:22 71:11
Rick 16:24
ridiculous 84:8 86:13
rights 14:17 39:2
riot 83:17
riots 56:15
River 50:14
Road 39:9
robberies 53:15,17
Robert 82:21
Roberts 11:18

Rock 27:14
roll 25:17
roller 17:8
rolling 15:18
room 81:5
Rosalee 12:3
rotation 73:23 78:11
rounds 83:19
Roy 13:2
rubber 88:5
rules 73:15 74:5 75:23 77:8
run 83:19
running 31:7 32:19 68:20
Ryan 31:11 39:8

S

Sacred 81:13
sacrificed 91:3
sad 17:18
safe 28:18
safer 86:14
safety 28:15,16 68:10 83:4,6
sake 55:19
San 62:18 84:2
Sanders 18:17
Santa 84:3
sat 55:20
satisfied 25:18
SCA 54:17
schedule 8:21 76:22
scheduled 47:20,24
scheme 83:2
schools 57:11
screen 6:6

scrutinized 86:14
searches 14:20
seat 88:15
seconded 24:17 25:12 95:14
Secretary 4:5 7:4 9:12,16,18
11:9,12,13 12:8,25 13:11,14
24:18,20 25:10,23 29:6 30:17,
21 31:19 42:5 43:11,14 44:7
61:21,22 64:11,13 66:20,25
69:16 71:8,17,20,25 72:3,7,11
76:24 79:12 80:16 81:2,8
82:20 84:13 85:14 88:19 90:5
91:20 95:5
section 22:7 93:4
Security 30:6
seeking 15:19
seized 19:19
select 29:22
sell 89:23
send 5:5 54:8 60:22 70:13
sending 73:24
Senior 12:2
sense 56:20
sentiments 75:21
separate 58:16 74:3 77:24
78:1
separation 48:20
sergeant 23:3,6 32:4,22 33:2,
8
Sergeant's 13:7 88:20
sergeant-lieutenant 58:5
servant 65:13
serve 20:20 22:1 69:18 90:21
served 78:3
service 6:17 42:1 43:3,6 49:25
50:1 58:25
services 52:4,25 53:6

servicing 73:22
session 64:25 65:5,11 76:22
77:4,14
sessions 64:23
set 44:13
sets 80:21
sex 46:24
sexual 51:10,11,14
shake 83:2
Shane 91:21,22,23
share 15:23 16:8,20 20:5
22:20 38:20 39:6 43:9 61:6
80:6 86:16
shared 16:25 38:15 62:20
sharing 19:12 62:21
Shaunee 84:16
Shawn 24:6
She'll 45:6
sheet 5:15,20 6:4 93:7
shined 91:16
shines 91:14
Shirley 8:16 18:25 57:23
shoes 45:14
shoot 83:18
shooting 66:6 83:12
shootings 52:13,19 53:12
54:11
shop 70:25
short 92:9
shot 87:15 89:14
show 15:10 30:2 35:16 44:16
showing 83:17
shut 86:5 94:15
sick 48:16
side 14:13 17:13 36:20 39:16
49:23 61:15

sides 55:6 56:12
sign 5:15
signage 30:11,12
signature 34:17 36:1,6
signed 36:3,6
significant 45:14
signing 34:17
silent 6:19
similar 4:20
simple 21:2
simply 17:23 62:1
single 87:6
sir 8:25 9:16 11:9 12:17 25:10
27:23 29:10,11 30:15 34:10
36:15 44:7,11,24 49:7,10
69:11,16,24 70:23 71:8,25
75:17 76:24 77:18 78:19
79:12 81:2,10 90:11
sister 84:16,20 85:22 94:24
sit 46:7 55:8
site 29:25
sitting 45:24 79:1
situation 44:21 57:2 73:23
situations 41:15
six-hour 56:11
skeleton 69:3
slavery 56:2
slight 51:19
slightly 32:6
smaller 68:22
smart 5:15,20 6:4 93:7
smiles 57:8
Smith 82:22 84:13,15,16
94:23
Snow 12:2
software 87:10,20

solved 90:1
Somerville 84:4
sort 21:12 22:20
sounds 6:20
southwest 17:11 28:5
speak 5:18 6:10 18:5 19:10
28:24 33:4 37:23 42:15 46:7
53:4 67:4 74:20
speaker 6:9,14 66:24 82:20
90:8 93:6 95:6
speakers 11:3 80:20
speaking 33:4 88:18
speaks 88:9
special 12:25 39:18,21
specific 20:17 31:19 35:4
37:18 43:4
specifically 21:7 28:22 32:4
46:24 59:15 66:8 74:6
speech 6:2
speed 39:13
speeders 41:6
Spikes 25:2
Spirit 7:21
spoken 88:11
spot 77:7
spotlight 15:11
Springfield 84:4
staff 11:8,15,18 12:5,15 16:8
21:19 63:5,22 64:15,18 66:8,
10 67:21,24,25 68:1,7,9,13,
21,22,25 69:5,7
staffing 46:23 47:2
stages 68:24
Stair 49:4
Stakeholder 65:6,12
stalled 41:21

stand 95:18
Standards 35:2
standpoint 74:23
star 5:22 6:6
start 5:25 28:10 55:22
started 28:11 34:19 47:12
51:3 78:6
starting 28:7
startup 28:25
State 79:23
stated 14:11 46:2 77:22 85:5
94:21
statement 92:9
states 74:6
stating 93:17
statistical 52:8 53:13
Statistics 65:21
stats 27:7,10 50:23
status 33:2,6,11
Stein 12:18
Steven 25:4
Steven's 93:7
Stevens 90:6
Steward 12:4 66:9
stolen 73:8
stood 89:19
stoppers 58:12
stops 27:8 56:19 64:25
storage 29:23
stranger-danger 51:16
strategies 53:19 55:1 64:24
65:9 66:2
strategy 51:23 52:17 54:8,17
86:8
street 39:15 53:21,24 89:18

streets 40:8 83:16
strengthen 87:12
stretched 40:7
strikingly 92:23
strong 36:7
struck 26:14
stuff 40:25
subjected 93:9
submitted 76:6
substandard 73:16
substantial 73:14 75:23
suburban 82:15
suburbs 46:9
successful 56:22
sued 79:6
sufficient 75:25 92:25
suing 78:23 79:2
summaries 64:15 65:25 66:7,
11
summarized 65:6
summary 46:21 65:18 73:1
summer 91:3
summons 86:23
Supervising 12:1,2
supervisors 46:6
Supplement 54:8
supply 81:20
support 64:3 70:2 83:24 85:24
86:18 88:3 93:22
supported 13:21,23 64:5
supportive 91:17
surfaced 81:19
surprise 81:17
surrounding 54:17 76:17
92:19

surveillance 30:6 83:5 86:10,
13
survey 15:18,22 81:15
surveyed 86:9
Surveys 15:11
suspect 26:19
suspects 52:23 53:4,10
suspend 77:21
suspended 78:8
suspension 48:19 73:22 78:1,
6,9
suspensions 48:17
suspicious 36:7
SUV 83:20
SUVS 83:20
sworn 46:25 47:2,5,9 48:4,6,7,
9,13,17
symptomatic 63:16
symptoms 63:19
system 22:11
Systems 30:7

T

tactics 65:9
takes 35:17
taking 36:20 53:20 75:3 89:20
talk 26:9 31:21 46:14 47:18
50:23 54:20 55:6 77:4 87:11
talked 54:3,23 56:2,4,5,7
talking 33:24 74:17 78:21,22
talks 88:1 94:5
Tamera 25:3
tape 37:9
Tara 24:7
targeted 52:18

targeting 53:25
task 59:17
Tawanna 88:18
team 21:12 51:23
tear 83:18 88:5
technical 30:23
Technologies 30:4,8
technology 11:16 84:2,9 86:2,
21
telephone 5:22
temporarily 47:15
ten 24:24 57:11 74:25 80:20
Tenth 26:12
tenure 20:7
terminate 74:7
terminated 75:8
termination 76:1
terms 6:16 19:20 21:25 22:7,8
26:4 32:15 33:9 36:10 44:20
55:7 67:11 68:9 69:13 93:19
tested 68:7,17
testing 47:17,18,19,24
Texas 62:17
text 60:21
thankful 7:10 91:17
thankless 90:20 91:9
theft 52:10
theme 14:15
thereof 7:15
Theresa 6:13 11:18,20
thing 16:19 18:6 89:11
things 10:3 16:22 34:14 40:7,
21,22,25 41:4,6,19,20 55:8,11
56:15 83:6 84:21 85:4 89:24
94:18
Thompson 24:8

thought 49:16 55:17 58:9 89:2
thoughts 20:5
Thursday 4:2 80:10
tickets 27:8 40:24 41:5 59:9
Tiffany 12:4 66:9
time 6:12,19 7:2,6 9:15 12:5
28:2,10 29:7,14 31:16,18,20
32:25 34:9,14,21 35:6 39:22
41:5,11 44:13,23 46:15 49:24
50:16,20 56:14 59:5 63:23
68:15 70:4 75:22 77:25 80:11,
22 81:16 82:19 83:4,8 85:6
88:17
timely 23:19
times 21:4 42:17 50:17 58:4
91:2,13 93:17
tired 91:6
today 10:14,18,20 11:14,17,19
37:21 86:12 95:6
today's 4:6 15:9 51:7
told 20:10 34:15 76:9
Tom 90:6 93:6
tomorrow 28:7
tonight 79:20
top 90:15
topic 89:4
TOSQUIARIC 29:8,12
total 47:4,8,10 48:2,4,11,19,21
52:11
tough 91:2
tow 73:10 74:2,8,9,25 76:5
towed 73:5
tower 73:3
tower's 76:1
towers 73:15 74:6
towing 73:17,23 74:8 75:24
77:23 78:11 89:2

tows 27:8 73:25
traffic 27:8 28:14 39:11,20,24
56:19
training 62:6,8,9,10,11
transmit 65:24 66:7
transmitted 63:3,25 64:19
transparency 87:4 91:24
92:11
treasure 19:20
treated 65:3
trees 89:12
Tricia 12:18
trigger 94:2
trouble 53:6
truck 73:10 76:5
true 4:19
Tuesday 37:1 61:25 63:20
turn 79:16 91:15
tutelage 60:2
Twenty 91:8
two-minute 66:23 80:22
Tyneil 13:1
type 61:8 74:12 85:10

U

ultimately 23:5
umpteenth 70:4
unable 29:14
unappreciated 90:20 91:7
understand 18:24 55:19 56:8
60:14 83:15
understanding 11:1 35:4
56:21 74:17 79:5
undertake 15:20
Underwood 11:21

unfair 85:22
unfinished 66:15 67:17 69:20, 23
unfortunate 41:19
UNIDENTIFIED 93:6
unit 31:2,7 32:7 40:23 51:24 88:20
Units 52:22
unlawful 14:21
unmute 42:6
unmuted 29:7 30:22 72:4,8
unprotected 6:2
up-front 82:25
update 34:16,20
updated 38:16
updates 26:10
ups 36:23

V

vacant 47:4,7
vanity 87:4
vehicle 37:21 40:12 52:10 73:5
vehicles 73:18
vendor 29:16,22
vendors 30:11,13 77:7
vice 54:5
Vice-chair 8:3 22:6 24:3,17 45:23
Vicechair 8:1
viciously 81:25
victim 52:3 84:16
victims 52:4,24,25 53:2,10
video 5:25 6:1 42:10,11,13,23 44:13,14,16,18 81:21 82:2 83:20 92:21

videos 81:23 92:22
view 44:14 56:16
viewing 44:23
viewpoint 16:4
Village 50:12
Vincent 25:2
violated 73:15
violating 6:16 39:2
violation 38:6 39:4
violations 75:23
violators 31:2,7,9,10 54:5
violence 51:22,23 52:1
violent 26:25
VIP 13:1
virtual 4:8 5:14 80:12
visible 4:16
vision 83:4,6
visit 5:11 17:9,10 22:6
visited 58:22
visiting 22:10
visits 53:10
voice 60:4
vote 63:23 67:25 68:3 77:21 86:20 88:14

W

wading 38:18
wait 71:1,6 88:14
walked 56:3
wanted 16:20 31:15 36:22 42:11 49:11,24 58:10 64:17 71:8 79:18 80:6 93:21 94:11
warrant 74:15 76:1,5
Warren 16:24
waste 83:8

watch 86:5
watched 86:14
watching 60:2
Wayne 32:6 44:19 74:14,19 76:6 82:7 92:6
weaponize 83:8
weapons 27:9
webinars 64:20
website 5:11,16,22 29:24 80:1
week 27:2,5,11 28:20 29:13,19 32:2,19,24 57:6 62:1 63:2,3 64:16,19,21 65:25 67:11 76:10,22 78:16 85:19,20 86:6 87:8 89:13 90:22 92:12 93:15
week's 39:22 87:25
weekend 27:7,16 28:13
weekly 14:10 43:12 57:1
weeks 22:18 40:6 42:7,8 69:14,15 81:24 86:1 90:25
weigh 15:22
white 4:5 6:23 7:4 9:12,16,18 11:7,9,12,13 12:8,16,25 13:11,14 15:24 23:18 24:18, 20 25:8,10,22,23 29:6 30:16, 17,21 31:19 42:5 43:9,11,14 44:5,7 45:5,6,7 55:21 61:7,20, 22 64:10,11,13 66:12,13,14, 20,22,25 69:15,16 70:24 71:8, 17,18,20,25 72:3,7,11,20 76:21,24 79:10,12 80:16 81:2, 8 82:15,20 84:13 85:14 89:9 91:20 95:5
White's 22:21
Wilham 24:9
William 8:23
Williams 12:21 49:22 50:24,25 60:11 61:10,13,16
Willie 7:1 14:12
Wilson 31:13 32:22
wisdom 7:16

witnesses 54:12
woman 82:1
women 40:4 50:18 60:2 90:13
91:10
wonderful 16:19 19:22 40:14
58:9
Woodstock 89:19
Woodward 27:14 89:15
word 10:15
work 8:21 19:8 29:11 35:18
40:5 41:1,18 43:2 45:17 49:3
52:3 57:13 60:2 68:1 90:21
91:1
worked 36:3 56:22 59:20
working 13:17 33:8 35:19
53:11 54:3 68:2,6 69:4 75:19
91:5
workings 22:13
workplace 63:16
works 22:8,12
workshop 64:25 65:5 66:3,4
workshops 89:6,7
world 16:14
worse 91:15
write 41:5
writing 40:24 70:15
written 47:19 62:25
Wrong 66:5
wrongly 87:9
wrote 39:22
Wynans-jordan 25:7
Wyrick 11:20 17:5 72:6,9,11,
12,14,18,20,21 75:13,21
77:11,22 78:4

Y

yard 36:25 40:12

year 15:16 18:1 32:9,14 35:6
51:3,6,13,14,19,20 52:14
53:21,22 58:1 67:23 73:3
year's 51:12
year-to-date 53:12,16
years 15:14 20:10 49:25 50:1
73:25 81:25 90:18 94:6
yeses 25:18
yesterday 38:1 89:11
yield 82:18 88:17
Yolanda 17:6
young 13:6 37:7,10 38:2 67:22
73:7,9 74:24 82:14 88:20
89:14 90:6,10,12 93:22 94:3,
8,10,12,23

Z

Zoom 4:9,13,14,17 5:1 6:5
46:4 57:3 60:14 79:21
Zoom's 4:24 6:16
ZOOM.US. 4:9
Zoomings 57:1